
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON MONDAY 12 MARCH 2018 AT 9.30 AM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
MONDAY 12 MARCH 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Draft Minutes of meeting held on 22nd January 2018   

 
3 - 6 

2   Presentation on the Draft Creative Ireland Dublin City - Culture and Creativity 
Strategy 2018 - 2022, Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian   
 

7 - 26 

3   Presentation on UNESCO Dublin Bay Discovery Centre - Donncha O' Dúlaing, 
Senior Executive Officer   
 

27 - 48 

4   Review of the Passport for Leisure and over 65's Scheme - Jim Beggan, Senior 
Executive Officer   
 

49 - 50 

5   Update Report on the George Bernard Shaw House -  Brendan Teeling,  Deputy 
City Librarian   
 

51 - 52 

6   Report on Street and Mural Art for the City - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer   
 

53 - 54 

7   Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City Arts 
Officer   
 

55 - 56 

8   Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square - Margaret Hayes, Dublin 
City Librarian.   
 

 

9   Management Update.   
 

57 - 94 

10   Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 23rd 
November 2017   
 

95 - 96 

11   Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 23rd 
November 2017.   
 

97 - 98 

12   Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 30th 
November 2017   
 

99 - 102 

13   Breviate of draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 
17th January 2018   

103 - 
106 



 

 
14   Breviate of draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 

31st January 2018.   
 

107 - 
108 

15   Breviate of draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
31st January 2018   
 

109 - 
110 

16   Breviate of draft Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership 
Advisory Board meeting held 5th February 2018   
 

111 - 
116 

17   A.O.B.   
 

 

 



 
 

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC MEETING 
 

HELD ON MONDAY 22ND JANAURY, 2018 
 

 

 
Members: 

Cllr. Vincent Jackson (Chair) 

Cllr. Rebecca Moynihan  

Cllr. Emma Murphy 

Cllr. Greg Kelly  

Cllr. Séan Paul Mahon 

Cllr. Claire Byrne 

Cllr. Mary Freehill 

Cllr. Aine Clancy 

Cllr Claire O’Connor 

Cllr Anne Feeney 

Maurice Ahern, Irish Sports Council 

Gerry Kerr, National Council for the 

Blind of Ireland 

Sarah Costigan, The Little Museum of 

Dublin 

Conor McQuillan, Public Participation 

Network 

Ciara Higgins, Royal Irish Academy of 

Music 

 

Others Present: 

Andrew Hetherington, Chief Executive, 

Business to Arts 

Liz Coman, Asst Arts Officer 

 

Apologies: 

Cllr. John Lyons 

Jenny Murray, Children’s Books 

Ireland 

Willie White, Dublin Theatre Festival 

 

 

Officials present: 

Declan Wallace,  Assistant Chief 

Executive  

Richard Shakespeare, Assistant Chief 

Executive 

Margaret Hayes, City Librarian 

Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian, 

Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Jim Beggan, Senior Executive Officer 

Mary Foley, Senior Executive Officer 

Donncha O’ Dulaing, Senior  Executive 

Officer 

Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer  

Minutes by Paula Ebbs 

 

The Chair remembered Brendan Lynch, a former Lord Mayor of Dublin who passed 
away at the weekend. 

Page 3



The Chair welcomed Jenny Murray, Children’s Books Ireland who replaced Elaina 
Ryan who is on maternity leave. 
The Chair also informed members that this is Declan Wallace, ACE last Arts SPC 
meeting as he is retiring in February, he expressed his deep appreciation to Declan 
for his outstanding service to this SPC and wished him well in his retirement.  
   

1. Minutes of meeting held on 13th November 2017.  
Action: Agreed 
 

2. Presentation on Business To Arts and Dublin City Council Partnership Overview – 
Andrew Hetherington, Chief Executive 

Business to Arts is in existence for over 30 years and its aim is to create partnerships 
between cultural and corporate sectors in Ireland. Dublin City Council are patrons 
and Partners of Business to Arts and are involved in 2 significant partnerships at 
present, Docklands Arts Fund and Fundraising Fellowship Dublin. 

The Chair thanked Andrew for his presentation and looked forward to updates in the 
future and any support the Committee can give to further their aspirations would be 
forthcoming. 
Action: Noted 
 

3. Presentation on Arts Education and Learning - Erasmus+ EU Funding and Project 
Implementation – Liz Coman, Asst. Arts Officer 
 
The Erasmus+ Permission to Wonder Project has come from the Arts, Education and 
Learning Policy, an overview document covering all art, education and learning, 
which was passed by the City Council in November 2016.  This project is designed to 
innovate and develop the components of a methodology for educators in European 
partner countries to learn and use the Visual Thinking Strategies method to enhance 
learning with visual arts in schools and in cultural institutions. 
 
Over the past 2 years 27 teachers in 9 schools based in the Central Area have 
participated in Visual Thinking Strategies training at the LAB.  
 
Ms. Coman outlined the actions, activity inputs, outputs timeline into 2020. 
The Chair thanked Liz for her presentation and congratulated the Arts Office on their 
successful EU funding award. 
Action: Noted 
 

4. Report on the Passport for Leisure and Over 65’s Scheme – Jim Beggan, Senior 
Executive Officer  

The Senior Executive Officer outlined that at the November SPC meeting the 
proposals in relation to the requirement that the scheme be available to over 60’s and 
those living or working in the City Council administrative area were agreed. However 
further discussion/consultation was required in relation to one element of the pricing 
proposal and this has now been agreed. The final outstanding matter is how 
information pertaining to events in Dublin will continue to be made available to those 
members of the current Passport for Leisure scheme who may now choose not to 
avail of the Passport for Leisure card and  will instead be dealt with directly by  Dublin 
City Council when it provides the sports and recreation element of the service 
directly.   
Action: The Senior Executive Officer to continue the consultation process with 
a view to bringing a final proposal to the March SPC meeting. 

Page 4



5. Verbal update on the Establishment of a Dublin City Council Cultural Company – Ray 
Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Members of the Arts SPC requested that the Report of the CEO, of the Cultural 
Company be referred back to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group (ACAG) for 
discussion at its meeting on 17th January. 

Cllr. Clancy, Chair of ACAG informed members of the SPC that following discussions 
with external experts and Councillors, the members of the sub-committee supported 
the establishment of the Company.  
Action: Report on the establishment of the Cultural Company to be submitted 
to the February City Council meeting for noting. Regular updates to come back to the 
SPC.  
 

6. Motion submitted by Cllr. Rebecca Moynihan 
 
“Street art is an emerging form of public art which can enhance the streetscape of a 
city. Conscious of the lack of clarity and guidelines around the production of street art 
this SPC agrees to develop a 'Street and Mural Art' policy for the City”. 
 
Action: Motion agreed. It was agreed to bring together interested parties to 
develop a policy on street and mural art for the city. City Arts Officer to bring a report 
to the March SPC meeting. 
 

7. End of Year Report on the Dublin City Local Economic and Community Plan 2016 – 
2021 (LECP)  
Action: Report Noted.  
 
Cllr. Clancy raised the issue of cycling in parks under Goal 10:2 Action 258.  The City 
Parks Superintendent informed the members that a review of the parks byelaws with 
regard to cycling and the implementation of signage to define Greenways will be 
undertaken in 2018.  

Conor McQuillan, PPN requested further reports on Goal 5.2 Action 129.  He 
requested that more specific provisions for accessibility sports be forthcoming.  He 
also requested under Goal 5.3 Action 139 that further information is required 
regarding the 32 key actions under the five key themes of the city play plan that have 
been implemented. 
Action: Future updates on these queries. 
 

8. Executive Summary on Creative Ireland Dublin City Programme 2017 – Margaret 
Hayes, Dublin City Librarian  

Dublin City Librarian presented the Creative Ireland Dublin City Programme End of 
Year Report 2017 to members. Each local authority was asked to develop a Culture 
and Creativity Plan for 2017 reflecting the overall structure and aims of the national 
strategy for culture and creativity. Dublin City Creative Ireland funding was used to 
facilitate collaborative projects between Dublin City Council and external partners in 
2017. Following on from the publication of the Dublin City Culture and Creativity Plan 
2017 strategic priorities for the next five years were developed to inform a Culture 
and Creativity Strategy 2018- 2022 for Dublin City. 
Action:  The Culture and Creativity Strategy 2018 – 2022 for Dublin City will be 
brought to the Arts SPC before submission to the full City Council in 2018. 
 
 

Page 5



9. Verbal Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy – Ray Yeates, City Arts 
Officer.  
Action: Noted.  The City Arts Officer informed members that one of the 
actions under the cultural strategy is to have a bi-annual conference to showcase the 
work we do in Arts and  Culture. The first such conference will focus on the work 
DCC do with young people and Arts Learning Education and Play, The Conference 
to take place in the first half of 2018. 
 

10. Verbal update on the New City Library at Parnell Square – Margaret Hayes, Dublin 
City Librarian.  
Action: Update deferred to next meeting 
 
Cllr. Freehill requested clarification regarding the delay in acquiring the George 
Bernard Shaw House. The Deputy City Librarian informed the members that the 
Department had instructed the Development Department to open negotiations with 
Failte Ireland to acquire the lease and we also are finalising instructions to City 
Architects to proceed to drafting tender documents for the works. 
Action:  Arrange an on-site visit and bring update report back to SPC. 
 

11. Management Update.  

Action: Report Noted. 

The Assistant Chief Executive paid tribute to the staff of the various sections for all 

the work being done and the projects and activities carried out throughout the year 

and wished Richard Shakespeare well in the future guidance of this SPC. 

12. Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 18th 
September 2017. 
Action: Agreed 

13. Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 18th 
September 2017 
Action: Agreed 

14. Approved  Minutes of the Sub-Committee on Artists Workspace meeting held  
25th September 2017 
Action: Agreed 

15. Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 28th 
September 2017 
Action: Agreed 

16. Approved Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board 
meeting held 9th October 2017 
Action: Agreed  

17. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 23rd 
November 2017 
Action: Agreed 

18. Breviate of Draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 
23rd November 2017  
Action: Agreed 

19. Breviate of  Draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 30th 
November 2017 
Action: Agreed  

20. A.O.B. 
There was no business under A.O.B. 
   
Cllr Vincent Jackson, 
Chairperson 

Page 6



P
age 7



CREATIVE IRELAND  
 
is a culture-based programme 
designed to promote individual, 
community and national 
wellbeing, an all-of-Government 
five-year initiative, from 2017 to 
2022, which places creativity at 
the centre of public policy.  
 
Further information from 
creative.ireland.ie and ireland.ie  
 

P
age 8



THE FIVE PILLARS OF CREATIVE IRELAND  

Pillar 1: Enabling the creative potential of every child 
 
Pillar 2: Enabling creativity in every community 
 
Pillar 3: Investing in our creative and cultural infrastructure 
 
Pillar 4: Ireland as a centre of excellence in Media Production 
 
Pillar 5: Unifying our global reputation 

P
age 9



WHAT IS CREATIVE IRELAND… REALLY? 

… a culture-based programme 
designed to promote individual, 
community and national wellbeing. 

P
age 10



… a set of innate abilities and learned skills:  
the capacity of individuals and organisations 
to transcend accepted ideas and norms and 
by drawing on imagination to create new 
ideas that bring additional value to human 
activity. 

… IT REALLY IS ABOUT CREATIVITY 

P
age 11



…AND CULTURE – NOT JUST ‘ARTS & CULTURE’ 

 
The shared values, patterns of behaviour, 
customs and forms of expression that 
characterise different social groups and 
communities - at any given time. 

P
age 12



 
Collaboration 

 
Communication 

 
Community 

 
Participation 

 
Empowerment 

 
Internationalisation 

 

KEY OPERATING PRINCIPLES 

P
age 13



DUBLIN CITY CREATIVE IRELAND TEAM  

 
Led by City Librarian 
 
Members from 
Archaeology, Arts Office, City 
Architects, Community,  
Dublin City Gallery The Hugh 
Lane, Events, Heritage, 
International Office,  
Libraries, Local Enterprise and 
Parks 

P
age 14



DUBLIN CITY CULTURE AND CREATIVITY PLAN 2017  

This plan was Dublin City’s first 
step in Creative Ireland’s five-
year journey focused on identity, 
culture and citizenship.  
 
A range of projects and 
initiatives were delivered as part 
of the plan in 2017.  

P
age 15



History and 
archaeology of the  
medieval royal 
Abbey of St 
Thomas the Martyr  
(1177) in the 
Liberties, Dublin 8 

DUBLIN CITY CULTURE AND CREATIVITY PLAN  
KEY PROJECTS 2017 

Dublin UNESCO City of 
Literature   
Writer-in-Residence 
Programme running from 
Nov 2017 – Oct 2018 

Early Years Arts Residency 
and Training Programme, a 

collaborative partnership 
between Preparing for Life 

(Northside Partnership) 
and Dublin City Council’s 

North Central Area Office 
and Dublin City Arts Office 
(Children’s Art in Libraries 

Programme) 

‘Tenement Memories, Suburban 
Experiences’ social history project at 
the Tenement Museum Dublin, 14 
Henrietta Street, Dublin 1 

P
age 16



CREATIVE IRELAND DUBLIN CITY CULTURE AND CREATIVITY 
STRATEGY 2018-2022 

Our vision is for Creative Collaborations at the heart of Creative Ireland Dublin City.   

P
age 17



1. We will work collaboratively to maximise opportunities for everyone to participate in the City’s 
creative and cultural life. 
 

2. We will invite children to explore, enjoy, create and play in their City. 
 

3. We will work to enhance local cultural and creative infrastructure to offer active use of public space 
in Dublin City. 
 

4. We will honour our past and focus on our future. 
 

5. We will develop internal and external partnerships to increase cultural participation.  
 

6. We will support artists and other creators. 
 

7. We will position culture, creativity and creative industries as central to Dublin’s global 
competitiveness and reputation. 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

P
age 18



Strategic Priority 1:  
We will work collaboratively to maximise opportunities 

for everyone to participate in the City’s creative and 
cultural life. 

P
age 19



Strategic Priority 2:  
We will invite children to explore, enjoy, 

create and play in their City. 

P
age 20



Strategic Priority 3:  
We will work to enhance local cultural 

and creative infrastructure to offer 
active use of public space in Dublin 

City. 

P
age 21



‘Future Proof 
‘Exhibition at The 
Lab Gallery 

Strategic Priority 4:  
We will honour our past and focus on 

our future. 

P
age 22



Strategic Priority 5:  
We will develop internal and external 

partnerships to increase cultural 
participation. 

P
age 23



Strategic Priority 6:  
We will support artists and other 

creators. 

P
age 24



Strategic Priority 7:  
We will position culture, creativity and 

creative industries as central to 
Dublin’s global competitiveness and 

reputation. 

P
age 25





P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



UNESCO Discovery Centre 

P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



reference image of education space  

P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



UNESCO Discovery Centre 

Discovery Centre - Concept Design 

P
age 39



Discovery Centre - Concept Design 

UNESCO Discovery Centre 

P
age 40



• Business Plan to cater for 55k-60k visitors annually 

• Self funding model 

• Existing DCC function incorporated 

• Existing Visitor Centre to be utilised for depot and beach user 
facilities 

UNESCO Discovery Centre 

P
age 41



UNESCO Discovery Centre 

• What Happens Next 

– Tender for Design Team Q1 2018  
• Ground Investigations 

– Tender for Planning Team Q1 2018 
• AA & EIA Screening Study 

 

 

 

 

– Iterative Process 
• Examine Options 

• Emphasis on Quality 

• Development of Exhibition – Interpretative Plan 

• Ongoing Consultation – Workshops etc 

 

ACTION TIMEFRAME 

Design & Planning Development Q1&Q2 2018 

Submit Planning Q3 2018 

Construction Start Q2 2019 

Discovery Centre in Operation Q3 2020 

P
age 42



UNESCO Discovery Centre 

• Construction Cost Estimate €10m 

– Dublin City Council Capital Works Programme 
2018-20 

– Strategic Infrastructure Project - Fáilte Ireland 

– Sponsors – Philanthropic 

– Partnerships – Universities etc 

P
age 43



UNESCO Discovery Centre 

• Construction 

– Minimise Construction Impacts 

– Modular Construction 

– Screening of works – Seasonal constraint 

– Parking has planning in place 

– Causeway Road Upgrade 

– Cycling route to be incorporated 

– Services to be diverted along Causeway 

P
age 44



UNESCO Dublin Bay Discovery Centre 

P
age 45



Kristiansand Centre, Sweden. 

P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 4 

 

 

REVIEW OF THE PASSPORT FOR LEISURE and OVER 65’s SCHEME. 

1. From 1st January 2018 it is intended to introduce a new membership scheme for 
people over 60 years of age that will be directly managed by Dublin City Council 
replacing the existing Passport for Leisure scheme. The new scheme will remove the 
initial membership fee of €10 that is currently charged.     
 

2. Annual Membership: This new membership will be available at a 50% discount to 
the normal annual membership fee which will result in an increase cost from €130 to 
€150 (Nett increase is actually €10 – as €10 membership / Passport for Leisure card 
fee no longer applicable). Classes in the Sport and Fitness Centres are not included 
in the scheme.  The over 60’s membership will be set at 50% of the standard annual 
membership going forward.  
 

3. Monthly Membership: This new membership will be available at a 50% discount to 
the normal monthly membership fee, which will result in an increase cost from €13 to 
€15 (Nett annualised increase is €24 less €10 membership card = €14). Classes in 
the Sport and Fitness Centres are not included in the scheme. The over 60’s 
membership will be set at 50% of the standard monthly membership going forward. 
 

4. Pay As You Go: The over 60’s pay as you go fee will be €3.00 - an increase of 25 
cent from €2.75.  Classes in the Sport and Fitness Centres are not included in the 
scheme. 
 

5. The age requirement for availing of the new scheme will be raised to 60 years of 
age from 1st January 2018 for all NEW applicants. However ALL EXISTING Passport 
for Leisure members of the facilities on 31 December 2017 will continue to be 
eligible to avail of the terms of the scheme, regardless of age, and will not be affected 
by the proposed price increase until 2019.  
 

6. The new scheme will only be available to individuals who can provide proof of living 
or working in the Dublin City Council administrative  area.  
 

CURRENT PASSPORT FOR LEISURE  PROPOSED COST TO THE OVER 60 SCHEME 

Cabra Parkside, St Catherine's, Irishtown and Ballybough are: 

€2.00 PAYG €2.50 

€8.00 Monthly €10.00 

€77.50 Annual €100.00 

Coolock, Crumlin & Sean Mc Dermott Street Pools: 

€2.20 PAYG €2.50 

Ballyfermot, Ballymun, Finglas, Markievicz, SWAN Sport & Fitness Centres: 

€2.75 PAYG €3.00 

€13.00 Monthly €15.00 

€130.00 Annual €150.00 
* The table above outlines the Passport for Leisure current pricing structure & the proposed pricing structure. Please note the 
initial Joining fee of €10 will be discontinued.   

Page 49



OLD AGE PENSIONERS (OVER 65) REVIEW  

Persons over the age of 65 access the Sport and Fitness facilities free of charge to use the 

swimming pools and/or gyms (classes not included) without any time restrictions.  

Historically this was introduced in the late 1960’s / early 1970’s when the City Council only 

provided swimming pools. Following on from some research, it was identified that other local 

authorities’ Sport and Fitness facilities offer membership at a reduced rate for old age 

pensioners (over 65). It is not evident that any other Sport and Fitness facility offers any 

individual or group access to facilities free of charge.  

Proposals for the OAP Scheme: 

1. From the 1st of January 2018 it is proposed to introduce a membership joining fee of 
€20 per OAP/Over 65’s  per year. This will entitle OAPs to use the Gym and/or the 
Swimming pool in the Sport and Fitness centres. The hours of access will also be 
changed to limit use of the facility under this scheme from Monday to Friday and only 
between the hours of 9 am and 6 pm.   
 

2. As part of the management of this scheme, from January 2018 it is proposed to 
introduce a membership card for each centre that will be issued to the OAP,  which 
will ensure that their attendance is recorded and is managed in accordance with the 
provisions of the scheme. I.D. and proof of age will be requested prior to issuing a 
membership card. 
 

3. ALL  existing OAP/Over 65’s members will have their membership renewed upon 
payment of the annual fee of €20. 
 

4. However, ONLY new members who live or work within the Dublin City Council 
Administrative Area will be offered the €20 annual membership.  
 

Regardless of age or where you live or work, all visitors are welcome to avail of the facilities 
at the very reasonable non-subsidised rates that our customers currently pay.   
 

Jim Beggan, 
Senior Executive Officer. 

 

Page 50



 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018  

 
Item No. 5 

 
Report on George Bernard Shaw House 

     
It is proposed that the dwelling can accommodate 1 or 2 writers in an arrangement that 
avoids the subdivision of the modesty scaled house. City Architect's Department at our 
request have prepared a feasibility study for the adaption of the existing Museum as a 
residence as a "Writer in Residence" dwelling, thereby reinstating its original use as a 
dwelling. Details of the agreed programme of works are set out below. The proposed 
interventions and the reinstated use are appropriate to and will enhance the Heritage 
Significance, and provide for a sustainable use, of this protected Structure.    
 
Building works will not begin until the transfer of ownership of the lease has been 
completed.  
 
The City Valuer’s Office has assigned a valuer to the case, and she has reviewed all the 
documentation supplied in relation to our instruction and the previous work completed by 
their office in relation to this property. She is in the process of conducting an inspection of 
the property and preparing a report which will include a measured survey. Following 
completion of same negotiations will commence. 
 

Programme of Works  
 
New Works:  
1. New Kitchen (Plumbing, extract, appliances),  
2. New Bathroom 1: Basement Return (Sanitary ware, tiling, access, vents)  
3. New Bathroom 2 (optional): First Floor Return - pending Client Body direction  
4. Electrical Services incl. Fire Detection, new pendants  
5. Mechanical Services  
6. Subfloor Drainage works to kitchen  
7. Wall Vents (6no.)  
 
Internal Repairs  
8.   Method Statement for Decorative Plasterwork  
9.   Method Statement for Internal Joinery (*Existing Doors Retained)  
10. Method Statement for Floorboards, local repair only  
11. Method Statement for Basement Damp Proofing (51.2m2):  
 
Specification A: Minimum Works (local repair only)-pending review by certified Damp 
Specialist  
12. Painting and Decoration (Lining Paper x 2 to water damaged walls):  
 
Insulation  
13. Basement Floor: (51.2m2): -pending review by certified Damp Specialist  
14. Upper Ground and 1st Floor (95m2)  
15. Attic: Specification B. Full Works (44m2)  
 
 

Page 51



 

External Works:  
16. Method Statement for Roofing Works incl. slate cladding (Provisional Sum)  
17. Method Statement for the Front Step Pavers:  
 
Specification A. Re-grouting external pavers/steps  
18. Method Statement for Footpath Works Piers, Coal Hole:  
 
Specification A. Re-grouting external pavers/steps  
19. Method Statement for Repair and Cleaning of External Ironwork:  
 
Specification A. Cleaning /painting only  
20. Method Statement for Brickwork Clean (light wash only)  
21. Method Statement for Sash Window (10 no.) Works -pending review by Specialist Joiner  
22. Rear Garden Works  
23. Protection Historic Fabric during Works  
24. Preparation of inventory of Furniture/Fittings 
25. Preliminaries  
 
This room arrangement enables the building layout to remain unaltered and for the historic 
circulation pattern to be reinstated, while providing the writer(s) in residence with suitable 
private spaces for working and living. The layout also provides for small scale gatherings for 
visitors at readings/workshops. 
 
We are currently finalising the following 
 

 An agreed brief with City Architects Preparation of Part 8 Application Drawings incl. 
detailed Historical/Fabric analysis 

 Part 8 / Planning Permission documentation. 
 
As requested the Area Committee will be informed of progress between the Arts, Culture 
and Recreation Strategic Policy Committee meetings. 
 
 
Brendan Teeling  
Deputy City Librarian 

Page 52



 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 6 

 

 

Motion on Street Art Policy  

Street art is an emerging form of public art which can enhance the streetscape  

of a city. Conscious of the lack of clarity and guidelines around the  

production of street art this SPC agrees to develop a 'Street and Mural Art'  

policy for the City. 

 

Cllr Rebecca Moynihan 

 

Introduction  

Following the passing of the above motion on Street Art at the meeting of the SPC for Arts, 

Culture and Recreation on the 22nd of January, 2018 there are a number of issues which 

need to be teased out in considering a proposal for a specific policy on Street Art and 

Murals.   

 

Defining Street Art 

Street Art and Graffiti Art are terms often applied to visual art created in locations outside 

formal galleries such as on walls, buildings and streets.  The production of the art is often 

unsanctioned and can vary from slogans and political messages to a purely aesthetic 

response to a subject or location.  While many painting techniques are used in its production 

Street Art and Graffiti Art are most often produce using spray cans.  ‘Tagging’ is included by 

some and not by others as part of this art movement.  Therefore, as with all attempts to 

define art there is no clear-cut definition for Street Art so while the terms and labels such as 

Street Art, Graffiti Art are appropriate to some practitioners, to others, it is merely Art.      

 

There are a number of complex issues relating to Street Art and the creative environment 

which pertains to the artists who create such work.  The most obvious of these is the fact 

that the art is purposely created in the public realm on public and private property often 

creating a tension between the rights of expression to those of property rights. This situation  

leads to, on the one hand a desire to regulate (by local authorities) and on the other (artists) 

the believing they are being over controlled and regulated.  Additionally, other issues are 

raised as the practice ranges from the purely aesthetic, to political and commercial content. 

So the challenge ultimately is, how can a policy be developed for a cultural expression which 

by its nature is often ‘unsanctioned’?   

 

Permissions 

As with all interventions in the public realm, there are a number of legislative issues relating 

to the creation of Street Art and where is can be located but a mechanism for such 

installations does exist.   

Page 53



As per the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended) murals on a building 

constitute development and as such require planning permission through the usual planning 

application process.  However they may be exempt from planning in certain circumstances, 

for example. 

1) Where it involves the painting of a hoarding in accordance with Class 12 of Schedule 

2 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (as amended) 

or 

2) It is carried out on behalf of,  jointly or in partnership with local authority  

or  

3) It is carried out by the local authority and the estimated cost of the public art and 

associated works is less than €126,000. 

 

In relation to 2) and 3) above the written consent of the Planning Department will be 

required. 

 

In any event, any public art piece including a mural painted on a hoarding, in compliance 

with Class 12, shall have no commercial or advertising content. This is because inclusion of 

such material makes it an advertising structure which requires planning permission. 

Legal Walls  

Dublin City Council has trialled the concept of legal walls for street art and is supportive in 

principle to such proposals.  Consent was given for locations in the city in the past, however 

owner permissions was withdrawn due to additional tagging of the general area and 

antisocial behaviour such as painting late at night, noise  etc.  The implementation of a legal 

wall would require permission of the owner, consent of the City Council, consultation with 

local businesses and residents. They are normally curated or managed by a Street Artist 

within guidelines and are painted out once a year. 

Proposed Action  

Given the complex nature of this issue it is proposed to bring together with the Arts Office, 

relevant officials from local Area Offices, Public Realm, Planning and Development 

Department to consider the various issues relating to Street Art.   

 

It is also thought important to hear the voices of Street Artists and in this respect it is 

proposed to create a forum where these can also be heard and learned from.  

Communication through the forum of process and guidance would benefit all operating in the 

arena. 

 

 
Ray Yeates, 
City Arts Officer. 

Page 54



 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 7 

 

 

Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy 

Priority 2.  Arts Education and Learning 

Action: Dublin City Council will: Perform an audit on existing strategic educational 

partnerships in Dublin City Council. 

Action: Establish a structure and guiding principles for these strategic partnerships in all 

areas of education and culture. 

As set out in the this update to The SPC in January 2018, it is proposed that this Department 

will hold a daylong conference in June this year to showcase the many Arts and Cultural 

Programmes that Dublin City Council support for young people 0-18 years throughout 

different Departments and Sections. This Conference is timed to coincide with a new 

initiative of Creative Ireland led by Libraries to showcase children’s creativity in Dublin. 

The purpose of this Conference is to: to showcase Dublin City Council’s extensive education 

and learning programmes and projects with Children and Young People (0-18) in the area of 

Arts, Culture, and Recreation (Play). This will take the form of presentations, workshops, and 

invited guests, in order to learn and understand this work in the context of the National 

Creative Ireland Programme.   

Creative Ireland is The National Programme placing creativity as central to Government 

Policy. It has five key pillars  

Pillar 1: Enabling the Creativiy of every Child. Pillar 2: Enabling Creativity in the community 

Pillar 3: Investment in Cultural Infrastructure. Pillar 4: Creative Industries. Pillar 5: Global 

Reputation 

Pillar 1 –enabling the creativity of the Child- has received significant public support at public 

meetings and consultations undertaken nationally. The role of Local Authorities in the area of 

children’s creativity is not clear in the Creative Ireland programme under Pillar 1 but is clearly 

defined under Pillar 2 Enabling Creative Communities with a Cultural Committee in each 

Local Authority. The Arts Council have begun the placement of Artists in Schools and the 

employment of Creative Associates to support a schools creative programme. The proposed 

conference will look at DCC’s ongoing role in this important area of Arts Education and 

Learning particularly in informal education whether at Libraries, Community Centres, The 

Hugh Lane, Youth Clubs, Festivals and Events etc and how this joins with the formal 

educational system at primary and secondary levels. 

Ray Yeates, 

City Arts Officer. 

Page 55





 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

12nd March 2018 
 

Item No. 9 
 

 
MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT 

 
DUBLIN CITY PUBLIC LIBRARIES AND ARCHIVE  

 
Dublin City Library Development Plan 2018 -2022 
 

 
 

The process of preparing a new 5 year library development plan is continuing, exploring how 
to build on ‘What is the Stars?’, the previous library strategy. Following on from a staff 
consultation event which took place in February, we are seeking the insights and 
perspectives of library users and people who don’t use libraries, city councillors and statutory 
and non-government organisations across the city to join us in considering the future of 
public libraries over the next five to ten years. This will be 2-hour event where you will have 
the opportunity to: 
 

- Share ideas for how we best develop the city-wide library network to ensure libraries 
offer the services that both current and future users want 

 
- Explore the importance of the library as a public space and how that shapes those 

developments 
 

- Imagine the potential for current and future collaborations to enhance the services 
your library offers to the local community 
 

Members will receive an invitation to the event which will take place in the Wood Quay 
Venue, Civic Offices, Wood Quay, Dublin 8 on Wednesday 7th March at 6.30 pm. Tea, coffee 
and light refreshments will be served from 6 pm. 

Page 57



New City Library & Parnell Square Cultural Quarter     
 

 
 
Following remobilisation, the multidisciplinary design team are working to meet the 
requirements of a July 2018 planning submission.  Aspects of the design, including the 
mechanical, electrical fit-out, structural considerations, adjacencies and food service 
requirements are being further developed as part of this process.  The project Environmental 
Impact Statement is also being developed as part of the design to planning process.  

Highlighting partnership: KEYFRAME 5 at Coolock Library  

 

Keyframe is a three day animation seminar run in Coolock Library annually. It is a 
partnership between Dublin City Public Libraries and Colaiste Dhulaigh College of Further 
Education and takes place in Coolock Branch Library. This year’s seminar was held on the 
5th, 6th and 7th February, with 3 lectures each day in the library, followed by practical 
workshops at the adjacent college. Now in its fifth year, it draws significant participants from 
the Irish animation industry who speaks to an audience of college students and the public. 
Speakers have included Oscar nominated producers (Cartoon Salon) and major 
international movies (Transformers). This year's speakers came from organisations as 
diverse as RTE's Republic of Telly, Brown Bag films, Boulder Media, Jam Media, and 
Gingerbread Animation. The 3 days of library lectures had an average audience of 100 
people in the audience for each talk. 

Page 58



Commemorations  

 
SAVE THE DATES!! The 2018 Dublin Festival of History will take place from 24th 
September to 7th October with talks on some of the significant anniversaries occurring this 
year such as votes for women, the 1918 General Election and the Armistice. 
 
UNESCO City of Literature – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Creative Ireland  
Creative Ireland Programme 2017 – 2022/Clár Éire Ildánach The Creative Ireland Dublin 
City Culture and Creativity Strategy 2018 – 2022 has been prepared and is attached. 
Click here to view Strategy   
 
 

 
 

 

Music Programme 
A violin tuition programme will begin in early March in Donaghmede and Rathmines Libraries 
aimed at adults. This programme is an introductory series of classes for 12 participants at 
each library.  Violins have been acquired for the participants for the duration of the tuition (8-
10 weeks). Other music projects will be announced during the year and libraries will 
advertise for the position of a musician in residence in early March to undertake a 
programme of engagement with members of the public at the Central Library and also in a 
number of other libraries. 
 
Projects - Update   
 
Kevin Street – A New Library for the Liberties:  The internal fit-out of Kevin Street Library 
is underway, with furniture and design contractor on-site, assembling and arranging the 
furniture in preparation for library staff to begin work in early March on the final “moving-in” 
phase of the project.  
A number of open days for community groups and public representatives will be held in 
March before the library opens its doors in April (the final date to be announced shortly). 
 
 

Page 60

https://dublincity.sharefile.eu/share/view/s30a29932cd84752b


 
 
 

Project Progress/Current Status Next Stage 
Terenure Library  City Architect’s Department are in the 

process of engaging ASi Architects 
Ltd to undertake a detailed study of 
the options for Terenure Library. The 
study will examine the following 
options : (i) The refurbishment of the 
existing buildings (ii) New build on 
the existing site (iii) New build as a 
joint development in collaboration 
with the Enterprise Centre. 

A further update will issue when 
Libraries have met with the 
consultant and the study has 
commenced. 
 

 
Programming  
There are lots of events taking place in libraries & archives in March and April. Copies of the 
printed Spring Brochure have been sent to councillors and are available to the public at 
branch libraries and council offices, and to download from the Council website  
All events are also included in our events calendar on the Council website at http://bit.ly/dcpl-
events. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61

http://bit.ly/dcpl-events
http://bit.ly/dcpl-events


Dates for your Diary (selected) 

 
The Spring Start your own Business programme begins in the Central Library on 5th April 
 

Lecture on Women’s Role in the Irish Language Revival by Dr. Aoife Whelan, Pearse 
Street Library, Wednesday, 7 March at 6.30 pm.  Music and poetry will feature as part of the 
evening.  
 

 

Comhghairdeas!  The Department of Irish Folklore at UCD has obtained the UNESCO 
designation 'Memory of the World Register' for its extensive and important holdings from the 
Irish Folklore Commission.  An tArdmheara Micheal Mac Donncha will lead the celebrations 
in song and story on 13th March in the Council Chamber, City Hall at 13.00. 
 

 
 
 

Page 62



 

Event Location Date / Time 

Why 1918 matters : 
South East Historian in 
Residence, Maeve 
Casserly explores the 
importance of several 
key events in this 
pivotal year in Irish and 
global history. 
 

Pembroke Library & 
Rathmines Library  
 

Wednesday 14 
March, Pembroke 
Library at 6.30pm 
Wednesday 26 
March, Rathmines 
Library at  6.30pm  
 

Strong Women and 
Suffragettes: A 
celebration of music 
and song to mark the 
centenary of women’s 
right to vote. Poet 
Catherine Ann Cullen 
will be joined by 
members of Góilín 
Singing Club . 
 

Pearse Street Library. Wednesday 21 March 
at 5.30pm 

50 Francis Street – 
Talk in association with 
Raheny Heritage 
Society by Suzanne 
Behan, granddaughter 
of John Walsh, the 
Francis Street 
Photographer.    
 

Raheny Library Wednesday 21st 
March at 6.30pm   
 

Alcohol – what we 
know , what we don’t 
know and what we 
need to consider 

Ballyfermot Library Thursday 22 March, 
6.30 pm 

Start up Start Here – 
Start and Grow Your 
Own Business 
Programme Using 
Social Media 
Effectively in your 
Everyday Life whether 
it’s for Business, 
Career or Leisure with 
Greg Fry, Business 
Advisor & Strategist 
 

Business Information Centre, Central 
Library 

Thursday 22 March at 
1.30pm   
 

 
Contact: Margaret Hayes, Dublin City Librarian 
Email:  Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  01 6744800 
  Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
  Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie 
  01 6744800 

Page 63

mailto:Margaret.hayes@dublincity.ie
mailto:Brendan.teeling@dublincity.ie


DUBLIN CITY GALLERY THE HUGH LANE  
 
Visitor numbers 

 

There were 11,979 visitors to the gallery in January 2018, this compares favourably to 

January 2017, when we welcomed 11,254 visitors. 

 

Capital works  - Refurbishment Project 

Preliminary design work is underway in preparation for the refurbisment works.  The 1930’s 

wing will be closed for the duration of these works, preliminary design will inform the closure 

date, which is likely to be late 2018/early 2019.  It is estimated that this closure will be for 

one year.  In advance of these works, it is necessary to relocate artworks from the gallery to 

off site secure storage to faciltiate the rehanging/in-house storage of works currently hung in 

galleries 1-9.  Our Conservation Department is currrently working on this transition and 90 

works have been moved off-site to date. 

 

 
 

Art handling team with assistance from art removal company prepare works for relocation 

 

Strategic Plan 2018-2023 

 

The five year strategic plan, adopted by Council in December 2017, establishes the aims 

and objectives of the gallery for the next five years.  Annual Plans for each area are being 

finalised that will translate these goals into actions that will be measurable and transparent.  

A key dependency for the delivery of this plan is the fundraising element, as the additional 

funding required to deliver on the strategy are to be funded on a match funding basis 

between Dublin City Council and private fundraising/sponsorship.  A fundraising strategy is 

currently being devised, at which stage, a fundraiser will be engaged to commence progress 

on raising the 2018 target of €100,000. 

Page 64



New Exhibition - Amanda Dunsmore: Keeper - 10th April - 22nd July 2018 

 

 
 

Marking the 20-year anniversary of the Belfast/Good Friday Agreement—a major milestone 

in the evolution of peace in Northern Ireland—Keeper presents artist Amanda Dunsmore’s 

social and political portraits that reflect specific points in history from the late nineteenth 

century to the present day.  

The artist’s methodology is grounded in her interest in issues of social and political change 

and this body of work stems from her time as artist in residence at The Maze and Long Kesh 

Prison from 1998.  The exhibition will be accompanied by a catalogue featuring essays by 

Senator George Mitchell, Amanda Dunsmore, Fionna Barber and Cillian McGrattan. 

 

Opening reception Monday 9 April, 5pm We are delighted to welcome Senator George 

Mitchell on Monday 9th April at 5pm, who 

will deliver an address The Good Friday 

Agreement: A Personal Reflection in 

advance of the opening of Amanda 

Dunsmore’s exhibition Keeper that evening. 

Tickets for this lecture are free and will be 

available through www. eventbrite.ie  

 

 

 

Study Morning in tandem with the exhibition Keeper - Friday 27 April, 9.45am – 1pm 

This study morning will explore themes arising from the exhibition Keeper by Amanda 

Dunsmore including the politics of memory, history, archive and the role of the artist. 

Speakers will include the artist Amanda Dunsmore, Dr Colin Graham, Fionna Barber and Dr 

Cillian McGrattan. For further details please see www.hughlane.ie/education and places can 

be booked through www.eventbrite.ie.  

 

Mid-term art workshops 

 

A successful two days of children’s art workshops took place at the gallery during our 

programmed February mid-term and was joined by children from 8 to 14 year olds 

experimenting with sculpture and animation processes led by artists Kathryn Maguire, Jane 

Fogarty and Janine Davidson. During these workshops we looked at Degas’s Thoroughbred 

Horse and Barry Flanagan’s Horse, Mirrored as well as the architectural reliefs in the Gallery 

spaces as inspiration for our artworks.  

Page 65

http://www.hughlane.ie/education
http://www.eventbrite.ie/


Hugh Lane Collaboration with the Foundations Project  

 

      
 

This spring we are continuing our after school artist-led projects organised by the Hugh Lane 

Education department for children participating in the Foundations Project. Aimed at 5-7 year 

olds and 7-10 year olds, our previous workshops took place in the Gallery’s education space 

on Wednesday and Thursday afternoons. The workshops in February to March are taking 

place at the Foundations Project’s building on Sean McDermott Street for a timescale of five 

weeks every Tuesday afternoon with a group of 5-7 years old. During these five weeks the 

children will look at paintings such as Fishmarket Patrick Street by Walter Osborne and Un 

Matin by William J. Leech and experiment with a variety of medium to create their own 

artworks with artists Kathryn Maguire, Rebecca Shelford and Jane Fogarty. A publication 

documenting the project to date is currently in progress. The Foundations Project is a 

CDETB and HSE initiative for people using homeless services.  The Hugh Lane’s project is 

funded by Dublin City Council’s NEIC Programme Office.  

 

Collaborations with Third Level Institutions 

The Gallery’s Education department continues to collaborate with third level institutions and 

special talks and workshops in February-March on the gallery education programmes, its 

collection and exhibitions as well as exploring Visual Thinking Strategies have been 

organised for students from Marino Institute of Education, NCAD, DIT Fine Art ‘Interface’ 

programme and DCU-St Patrick’s College.  The Gallery’s education space has proven to be 

a valuable resource in the delivery of these programmes and discussions. 

 

One City One Book 

In tandem with the theme of the book The Long Gaze Back, An Anthology of Irish Women 

Writers this lecture by Jessica Fahy on Sunday 15 April at 2pm will discuss portraits of Irish 

women authors in the Gallery’s collection. 

 

Lectures Series in collaboration with the ICTU Peoples College 

This year’s 24 week lectures series 2017-2018 concludes in March with talks on Artist in 

Focus: Jeff Koons with Jessica Fahy on Saturday 3 March 2018 at 11.00am; Irish Art Now 

with Emma O’Toole on Saturday 10 March 2018 at 11.00am; What is Performance Art? with 

Liliane Puthod on Saturday 24 March 2018 at 11.00am; and New Perspectives: 

Contemporary Art in a Global Context with Yvonne Pettitt on Saturday 31 March 2018 at 

11.00am. 

 

 

Page 66



Printmaking Course: Land and Sea 

Saturdays 7 April to 28 April, 11am – 1pm 

 

 
 

Artist Elaine Leader will deliver this four week printmaking course for adults exploring the 

theme of land and sea. This course will be inspired by artworks in the collection and explore 

a variety of printing techniques in our dedicated education space. Our adult drawing and 

print-making classes led by artists Elaine Leader, Beth O’Halloran, Felicity Clear and Janine 

Davidson continue to be popular with new and returning audiences to the Gallery.  

 

Fulbright Education Project  

Lesley McBride, the Hugh Lane’s Fulbright Education scholar for 2017-2018 is currently 

undertaking research on programmes for youth throughout the city which includes site visits 

and meetings with youth organisations. This research will also result in a practical 

collaborative art project with young people and the Gallery.  

 

City-wide schools project  

Planning is underway for a city-wide project working with primary schools throughout the five 

areas of Dublin City Council taking place in 2018. This project will see children exploring 

details in artworks in the collection with a view to encouraging them to look more closely and 

more deeply at an artwork and also to notice things that might otherwise be overlooked. 

Taking place over a succession of visits to the Gallery, the children will be encouraged to 

discuss what they have seen and will have practical art workshops based on their 

observations.  

 

First Friday Culture Club  

The Hugh Lane’s First Friday Culture Club on 2 February was such wonderful experience to 

reflect and discuss selected works from the gallery’s collection by Lesley McBride who 

guided the discussion using the Visual Thinking Strategies method. During this visit the 

participants looked at Conradesque by Sean Keating, Invisible Cities by Paul Seawright, 

Outskirts by Philip Guston and Nairobi Slum Clearance by Brian Maguire. The VTS 

approach was greatly enjoyed by participants and expertly facilitated by Lesley. 

Many said they would often walk past contemporary works but now we’re going to take the 

opportunity of looking at these works again.  These talks are followed by discussion over tea 

and coffee and are in collaboration with Dublin’s Culture Connects.  Upcoming talks will 

focus on sculpture from the Hugh Lane’s collection on 2 March at 10.30am led by Liliane 

Puthod and a talk on conservation led by the Gallery’s Conservator Lucia Fabbro.   

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Family programme 

St Patrick’s Festival 

Saturday 10 March, 2pm – 4pm 

Get ready for St Patrick’s Day during this drop in family workshop led by artist Barbara 

O’Connell. Let’s make our own fun flags for the parade with our own crests and patterns on 

them!  

 

Early Years Workshop for 1–3 year olds 

Tuesdays 27 February to 20 March, 11am – Noon 

Join ecological artist Ashleigh Downey during this four week course on a sensory journey of 

sights, sounds, smells and textures from nature’s garden. Through nature based art activities 

and storytelling, a creative connection with nature will be encouraged.  

 

Early Years Workshop for 1–3 year olds 

Colourful textures 

Thursdays 5 to 26 April, 11am – Noon 

Inspired by the Gallery’s collection, we will play with texture, line and colour with artist Jane 

Fogarty. During this four week course we will make, touch, experiment, see, discover and be 

fully immersed in a sensory world of simple shapes, colours and textures. 

 

Portraits  

Saturday 21 April, 2pm – 3pm 

Be inspired by Amanda Dunsmore’s exhibition Keeper and explore the theme of portraits 

through the medium of drawing in this art workshop for 10–14 year olds with artist Janine 

Davidson. Fee €5 

 

    
Contact: Barbara Dawson, Director 
Tel:   222 5551 

Tara Robertson, Administrative Officer 
Tel:    222 5559 
www.hughlane.ie t. @TheHughLane f.  Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68

http://www.hughlane.ie/


PARKS AND LANDSCAPES SERVICES 

Parks Capital Programme 

Plan Progress/Current status Next Stage 

Le Fanu Park 
( new Skatepark) 

Following Tenders clarification was 
sought from Contractors and is being 
reviewed 

Works Contractor to be 
appointed Mar/Apr 

St. Anne’s Park Follies 
Restoration 

Works nearing completion Works complete 
April/May 

Temple Bar Square Phasing plan being developed with 
Traders 

Construction Tender to 
issue Q1 

Bluebell All-Weather 
Pitch 

Design stage complete Works Contractor to be 
appointed April/May 

Markievicz Park 
Pavilion Upgrade 

Construction tender complete Works to commence 
April 

UNESCO Dublin Bay 
Discovery Centre 

Initial consultations underway Design & Planning Team 
tenders to be issued 

Merrion Square Tea 
Rooms 

Design and planning complete Construction Tenders to 
issue April 

Christchurch Grounds Design works complete Construction tender to 
issue Feb - Site Works 
April 

St. Audeon’s Park 
Improvements Phase 1 

Construction works have commenced Works complete 
March/April. 

 

Play Development & Facilities 

In December 2017 the first draft of the review of the Dublin City Play Plan was completed. 
This review will inform the subsequent set of actions that will be included in the 2018 
Implementation Strategy for the Play Plan. The City Council’s Play Development Officer 
presented the Dublin City Play Plan at ‘A Playful City’ conference, which was held in October 
2017. This was part of the initiative to promote the City Council’s commitment to supporting 
UNCRC Article 31; the child’s right to play.  

Dublin City Council hosted the 12th National Playday event, which annually takes place in 
Merrion Square Park on the First Sunday in July.  The Theme for this year’s event was ‘Fun 
& Active Play’ during which over 2,000 families attended and enjoyed this free and fun event.  

Play Development continued its involvement in the St Anne’s Rose Festival in July 2017 by 
co-ordinating and hosting the child-friendly and playful element of this event.  

Following the success of the 2016 Commemorative events, Dublin City Council was invited 
to co-ordinate and host two play activities programmes as part of the Áras an Uachtaráin 
Garden Party Programme; Family Picnic and Welcoming Children/New Citizens of Foreign 
Adoptions. Over 600 children and young people from all over Ireland and the rest of the 
world attended these events.  

Further details can be found here: 
https://www.aai.gov.ie/images/news/Speech-at-Failte-Garden-Party-3-Jul2017.pdf 
 

Page 69

https://www.aai.gov.ie/images/news/Speech-at-Failte-Garden-Party-3-Jul2017.pdf


Throughout the year DCC’s Play Development Officer has facilitated community and public 
consultations regarding the design of play facilities in local neighbourhoods and within the 
wider public domain. This involved interdepartmental and collaborative working and the 
provision of practical support and expertise in developing a ‘play led’ approach regarding the 
development of a citywide play infrastructure.  

Funding for some of these projects came from Capital funding applications and included 
part-funding from the Department of Children and Youth Affairs (DCYA) and DCC’s Capital 
Budget.  Funding from DCC’s Revenue budget for playground upgrades facilitated upgrades 
at Mount Bernard Park Natural Playground, Ceannt Fort Playground, Hertzog Park 
Playground and the 1916 Commemorative Play Garden.  We continue to collaborate with the 
City Council Housing Department and Area Offices and Play Development Projects currently 
being addressed include Ross Road Play Space, Rathmines Avenue; Labre Park; Poole 
St/Braithwaiate Street; Basin Street; Marrowbone Lane and Sherriff Street Playground 
redesign and relocations. 

The City Council Play Development Unit supports the Dublin Region Homeless Executive 
(DRHE) by providing practical support and advice in addressing accessible and inclusive 
play opportunities for children and young people experiencing homelessness at a range of 
Family Hubs - Green Park, Clonard Road, High Park Road and Sarsfield House.  We have 
also assisted with the development of a play friendly reception area at Park Gate Hall 
Homeless Reception Centre.   

The 2017 Summer project support programmes involved two new initiatives aimed at 
promoting and facilitating children and young people’s access to outdoor ‘free play’.  
Subsequently, over 1,000 children and young people enjoyed subsidised visits to Dublin 
Zoo. 

We provide practical and financial support to Local Area Offices and facilitate the short-term 
loan of Play Equipment to local community groups, schools, clubs etc for play events 

A total of 8 community groups availed of and benefitted from DCYA grant funding during 
2017. This is a collaborative initiative in which DCC’s Play Development Officer provides 
practical support regarding the administrative process and promotion of the National 
Recreation Week Grant 
 
Events for the Diary 

Date Event Location Time 

18th March 2018 The Big Day Out Merrion Square 12.00 – 18.00 

10th March 2018 Bank of Ireland 
Spring in Your Step 
Walk 

St. Anne’s Park 13.00 – 16.00 

10th March 2018 ISNA Plant Fair St. Anne’s Park 09.30 – 15.30 

14th March 2018 5k Charity Run – 
Beaumont Hospital 

St. Anne’s Park 11.00 -  15.00 

29/03/19 – 31/03/18 Cadbury Easter Egg 
Hunt 

Merrion Square 10.30 – 13.00 
14.00 – 16.40 

 
Contact: Leslie Moore, City Parks Superintendent 
  Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2225049 
  Caroline Maher, Administrative Officer, 
  Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2222348 

Page 70

mailto:Leslie.moore@dublincity.ie
mailto:Caroline.maher@dublincity.ie


SPORT AND RECREATION 
 
DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP 
 
New Board Members 
 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership held its first meeting of 2018 on February 5th with 
a new Chair and a number of new board members.  Rob Harnett of Sport for Business takes 
over the chair from Fiona Coghlan who served since its creation two years ago and will 
remain on the advisory board.  John Costello from Dublin GAA, Michael Dawson from 
Leinster Rugby, Sinead McNulty from Dublin Institute of Technology, Richard Fahey from 
Tennis Ireland, Councillor Seamus McGrattan and Maurice Ahern are also staying on and 
they are joined this year by Mary O’Connor from the Federation of Irish Sport, John Foley 
from Athletics Ireland, Siobhan Fitzpatrick from the HSE, John Gillick from AIG and Richard 
Shakespeare from DCC who takes the reins from Declan Wallace.  A key priority for the 
Partnership in 2018 is to host the inaugural Dublin Sports Fest during European Week of 
Sport: 23rd to 30th of September.   
 
Lord Mayor 5 Alive Challenge 
 
The 5 Alive Challenge continues with participants now over half way through the challenge.  
The next race is the Metro St. Brigid’s St. Patrick’s 5k race taking place in the City Centre at 
12 noon on the 18th of March.  This will lead into the final race which for the first time is a 10k 
race in St. Anne’s Park, Raheny on Saturday the7th of April. 
 

 
 
 

   
This is a FREE physical activity programme aimed at adult men of all ages who have been 
inactive for a sustained period and want to get back to exercising and improving their fitness 
levels. It involves regular exercise sessions made up of a combination of aerobic, strength & 
flexibility components. Programme locations include Ballybough, Coolcock, Terenure, 
Fatima, Irishtown.  
 
Get Dublin Walking 
 
Following on from our successful Operation Transformation Walks held on Saturday the 13th 
of January, weekly walking programmes have been commenced in a number of areas 
across the city.  Walking is an ideal activity for all those wishing to kick start a more active 
lifestyle - It is a safe and accessible activity that can be done with family and friends.  

Page 71



A brisk walk can provide a huge range both of physical and mental health benefits.   
Programme partners include DCC Community Section and the HSE.  Get Dublin Walking 
locations: 
 

 Aughrim Street, Dublin 7 Thursdays  10am 

 Memorial Park, Coolock Tuesdays 9.30am 

 Tolka Vally Park, Finglas Saturdays 9.30am 

 Clogher Road, Crumlin Tuesdays 9.30am 

 Brickfields Park, Drimnagh Saturdays 9.30am 

 Ballyfermot Main Church Wednesdays 7pm 

 Mount Merrion area   Tuesdays 5.30pm                

(meet at St. Vincent’s Hospital) 

 
Raheny Way Walking Route 
In partnership with Raheny Tidy Towns we are almost ready to map and publish three 
community walking routes which, when combined, will make up the ‘Raheny Way’. This is an 
ongoing project which should become part of Irish Heart Foundation’s Slí Na Sláinte 
Programme and Dublin City Walking Trails Guide. 

 
Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership continues to support parkrun through start-up 
funding, promotion and pathway programmes i.e. couch to parkrun and Get Dublin Walking.  
Dublin City now boasts a total of nine parkruns, which provide free, timed 5k runs every 
Saturday morning at 9.30am.  Locations as follows: 
 

 St. Annes Park, Raheny, Dublin 5 

 Poppintree Park, Dublin 11 

 Father Collins Park, Donaghmede, Dublin 13 

 Busy Park, Terenure, Dublin 6  

 Sean Moore Park, Sandymount, Dublin 4 

 Fairview Park, Dublin 3 

 Football Pavilion, Dublin, Dublin 17  

 Brickfields Park, Drimnagh, Dublin 12 

 Tolka Valley Park, Finglas, Dublin 11 

Junior parkrun 
 
Junior parkruns are 2k runs for juniors aged 4 to 14 years.  They take place on Sunday 
mornings at 9.30am.  Junior parkruns currently take place in Albert College Park and St. 
Annes Park.  
 
DCSWP Sport Officers have engaged almost 350 participants to sign up to the programme 
where they take part in weekly physical activity classes such as aqua aerobics, walking, 
running, boxercise, zumba and aerobics.  Participants are also provided with pre and post 
programme health assessments and nutritional information and advice.  Programmes are 
taking place at Bluebell, Clogher Road, Fatima, Poppintree, Darndale, Inchicore, Irishtown, 
Harolds Cross, North West Inner City and North East Inner City. 

Page 72



 
The Participant Showcase and Information Evening is a celebration of the participants' hard 
work and dedication to adopting a healthier lifestyle.  Special awards will be presented on 
the night to individuals who have shown the greatest commitment to the programme.  To 
support participants to maintain an active lifestyle following programme end, information 
stands will be set up at the event advertising opportunities across the city for continued 
physical activity participation.   
 
Andrea Hayes from Today FM will MC on the evening and will be joined by Special Guest, 
Mary Byrne (of X Factor fame).  Mary, a Ballyfermot native, took part in the 2017 Celebrity 
Operation Transformation and has successfully maintained her weight loss and so is well 
placed to share her experience with the participants. 
 
Football in the Community 
The FAI Development Officers continue to work with schools and community groups across 
the city to engage young people in a positive and healthy activity.  In addition, the Officers 
are focusing on the development of Walking Football.  This is an activity targeting Older 
Adults and in particular older men.  It provides the opportunity for friendly competition, 
physical exertion and socialisation within DCC Sport facilities at non-peak hours.   
 
 

Contact: Antonia Martin 
Programmes & Services Development Manager, Dublin City Sport & 
Wellbeing Partnership 
Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie 

Tel:   01 2227870 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

mailto:Antonia.martin@dublincity.ie


RECREATION CENTRES 
 
Kilmore West Recreation Centre 
 
The staff in the  Kilmore West Recreation Centre have been proudly involved with a football 
programme with the North Dublin Mental Health Services for the last 3 years and this article 
appeared in the NorthSide People in January. It is currently being planned that a match will 
be held in Dalymount Park,  after April, and the families of the players will be invited to 
watch. 
 

Putting the Boot in Stigma 
 

On Thursday the 14th December a team of mental health service users played a 5 a side 
game against a team composed of Dublin City Council staff members in Kilmore Hall 
Coolock. Over The Line football team, which hails from North Dublin Mental Health Services, 
has been running for over 3 years and promotes positive physical and mental health.  
 
People who suffer from mental health issues, e.g. depression, anxiety and psychosis 
sometimes experience social exclusion, feelings of anxiety and isolation. These issues can 
present challenges when engaging in social activities. Developing relationships with 
community organisations becomes paramount when tackling stigma, building social support 
networks and promoting inclusion. The power of team sports should not be underestimated - 
one service user stated that “this is my favourite time of the week, as the exercise helps me 
feel better”. 
 
The building of important relationships with such organisations as Dublin City Council 
enables people who suffer from mental illness to engage in meaningful activities that 
promote inclusion, improve self confidence and enhance recovery.  
 
“Over The Line” football group has gone from strength to strength over the past 3yrs with the 
support of Shane Manton, Clinical Nurse Specialist and Kevin Callanan, Occupational 
Therapist. The team are looking forward to the continued supportive relationship with the 
management and staff of the Recreation Centres in putting the boot in stigma.  
 

 

Page 74



Common Ground Project 
 
Light Bellied Brent Goose Ambassador Project 2017 to 2020 
 
This project now involves both St Laurence O Toole’s CBS Girls and St Laurence O Toole’s  
Boys NS in the Sheriff Street Area. The girls' school will be visiting the Bull Island 
Interpretative Centre and will visit the North Bull Island part of the Biosphere to see and 
identify the local fauna and the geese as they graze on the mudflats, marshes and open 
spaces as the boys did before Christmas. 
 
Dublin Port has volunteered the following as part of the project.  

 To provide photos of the Brent geese in the port 

 To provide scientific facts about the geese in the Port as referred to in the Dublin Bay 
Birds Project, especially facts which will appeal to schoolchildren  

 To facilitate an illustrated tour of the port for about 50 schoolchildren from the local 
area  () which tells them the story of the port, its wildlife and the Brent Geese in the 
port 

 To facilitate the coach transport of the children to and from and within the port.  

 To provide the children with a Dublin Port Corporate gift, which will be used to help 
them draw and tell stories about their day in the Port.  

 
This project is in partnership with Dublin City Councils Bio-Diversity Officer and as part of 
The Dublin City Biodiversity Action Plan 2015 -2020 promotes education, awareness and 
responsible recreational behaviours in parks, pitches open spaces including North Bull 
Island, Irishtown Nature Reserve and Sandymount Strand.  
 
Health and Safety 
The first five defibrillators and holding boxes have been delivered. The boxes are currently 
being installed and the first of the defibrillators will be installed at Hardwick St., Dominick St., 
St. Paul’s Blackhall Parade, Georges Place and St. Laurence O’Toole’s Recreation Centres 
in  early March. It is expected that the next 6 defibrillators will be delivered shortly.  
 
 
Contact: Trevor Higgins  

Recreation Centres Manager 
Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 75

mailto:Trevor.higgins@dublincity.ie


 
ARTS OFFICE 
 

The LAB Gallery Upcoming exhibitions - opening 15th March 
Bassam Al Sabbah, Illusions of love dyed by sunset 
Preview 15th March exhibition continues to 3 June 
 
Born in Iraq, emerging artist Bassam Al-Sabah’s practice aims to convey visions of war, 
resistance and perseverance. His work in multi-media installation utilises video, painting and 
sculpture and is concerned with how the past is constantly reviewed to meet the present. 

Examining the agendas and effects of children’s 
broadcasting in Iraq between 1970 and the present day, 
scenes of war and destruction are shown in parallel with 
fantasy and reality, the hero and the everyday, the make-
believe and fact.  
 
As the juvenile fantasy breaks down into the veracity of 
adulthood, the links between violence, representation and 
preservation are deconstructed. 
 
Al-Sabah graduated from IADT’s BA Visual Art Practice in 
2016 and was awarded the RHA Graduate Studio Award. 
He was also shortlisted for the RDS Visual Arts Awards, 
curated by Alice Maher. Recently he was part of a panel 
discussion, chaired by Cristín Leach, in Dublin Castle as 

part of Cruinniú na Cásca, and was listed by Gemma Tipton in the Irish Times as an artist to 
watch in 2017. 
 
 
Emma Roche, Forward Slash Preview 15th March exhibition continues to 3 June 
 
Emma Roche makes oil paintings and objects from acrylic paint. The work flips between 
figurative narratives and abstract painting. Traditional painting materials are used in many 
different forms; some expanded and some not.  
 
For this exhibition, Emma is developing a a series of oil 
paintings that stem from ideas about ‘day jobs’, the various 
jobs she has held while developing her career as an artist, 
including teacher, call centre worker, guardian etc. Each 
work isolates images of past positions, self portraits, 
bosses, interiors, exteriors, in house rules, colleagues as 
well as imagined occupations and fabricated titles. 
 
Alongside these oil paintings Roche constructs paintings 
from dried acrylic paint in a mash-up of various laborious 
techniques. There is an insouciant use of materials and 
habitual processes where the paint is braided, knotted, knitted, pushed and shoved in an 
attempt to come to a working understanding of the ‘everyday’. 
 
Quasi-human form, child-like note-taking and an instinctive handling of materials are central 
to both bodies of work and all that informs them.  
 
 
 

Page 76



 

In response to Arts Office Team Plan 2015-2018 :  
 

- Partnership with Arts Organisations and Other Agencies  
- Supporting Artists; 
-  Arts in Local Areas 
- Strategically Increase Resources 

 
Plan for 2018 - In response to Arts, Education and Learning Policy  
 
Objective, No. 1  Increase understanding and awareness of the value of the Arts 

and their intrinsic value in Education and Learning.   
 

Action, No 3  Work to enhance connections and collaborations between different 
areas of the City Council in arts, education and learning   

 
   Outputs  

 Annual DCC cross departmental conference/day exploring Dublin City 
Council’s practice with children and young people  

 Leading the Conversation – A youth-led initiative in partnership with 
The LAB Gallery, OPW and Central Model Senior School & The Arts 
Council 

  
Objective No 2  Support quality of artistic experience through professional 

development of artists, arts and cultural workers, educators and 
facilitators.   

 
Action No. 2   Ensure quality experiences by investing in professional development 

for artists, arts and cultural workers, educators and facilitators through 
arts grants, bursaries, commissioning, training, evaluation and 
showcasing professional arts practice in arts, education and learning. 

 
 Outputs  

 EU - Erasmus+/Permission to Wonder – Visual Thinking 
Strategies  

 Exploring and Thinking - Early Childhood Arts in the Dublin 
Region in partnership with The Arts Council of Ireland    

 
Objective No.4  Increase access and provision for children and young people to 

quality arts experiences in local neighbourhoods.    
 
Action No 5  Explore and research opportunities for the arts in education and the 

role of the city as partner with formal education in response to the Arts 
in Education Charter (2013) in order to increase access and provision 
for children and young -people as described in The Arts Council 
strategy ‘ Making Great Art Work’ and the ‘Framework for 
Collaboration between The Arts Council and the City and County 
Managers Association.   

 
Outputs   

 Department of Education led – Artist-Teacher Partnership initiative & 
Emerging Partnership with Drumcondra Education Centre  

Page 77



HIGHLIGHTED OUTPUT for This Report  
 

   
  
 
 
 

National Artist-Teacher Partnership Programme – Training and Residency – 
Led By Department of Education and Skills in Partnership with Encountering 
the Arts Ireland   
 
Pilot 2017 - Dublin City Arts Office In partnership with Drumcondra Education Centre 
 

  
 
The aim of this national arts in education programme – training and residency - is to explore 
and develop teacher artist partnership as a way of delivering arts based initiatives in the 
classroom.  It examines the implications of this way of working and its practical application in 
the classroom, utilising and building on the expertise of both the artist and the teacher.  A 
weeklong training course took place in Drumcondra Education Centre in August 2017, 
exploring artform practice, the aims and objectives of an arts education curriculum in the 
primary school, as well as available local and national resources available at local level.   
 
The criteria for participation is set at national level, and in this case, was implemented by 
Drumcondra Education Centre and Dublin City Arts Office in 2017. 
 
In July 2017, Dublin City Arts Office was invited to advise ETAI and Drumcondra Education 
Centre and broker connection with professional artists working across artforms in the arts in 
education field of practice. Terms for Artists invited were that the opportunity involves a 
commitment from four artists and twenty teachers to attend a week-long training course 
(€150  per day plus travel expenses and lunch) followed by a paid 20 hour residency with the 
artist in the classroom to the value of €700.   The training course took place in Drumcondra 
Education Centre on 21st-25th August, 9.30-2pm.   

Page 78



The course will catered for 4 artists and 20 (primary) teachers who will take the course 
together.  Artists invited to participate were Mariam Ribon (dance), Eamon Sweeney (music), 
Aoife Giles (visual arts), Niamh Lawlor (theatre) and Gabi McGrath.  All invited artists are 
from Dublin City Artists Panel, with the exception of Mariam Ribon who is supported by DCC 
NEIC Neighbourhood Arts Award and piloting a dance and maths programme in Central 
Model Junior School.  Gabi McGrath was nominated by Encountering the Arts Ireland – a 
cross art in education membership body responsible for co-ordinating the national 
programme.   
 
In the Dublin City Council Administrative Area, the participating schools in the residency 
element were –  
 
St Brendan’s National School, Artane 
North Dublin National School, Ballymun 
Darndale Junior School 
 
A showcase and sharing with the students, teachers and artists took place on 1 February 
2018 at Drumcondra Education Centre.  
 
An evaluation of the programme with the teachers and artists is currently underway and 
Drumcondra Education Centre and Dublin City Arts Office intend to grow and further develop 
the programme at local level in 2018.   
 
 

MusicTown 
 

   
 
MusicTown will be back with a bang this April, with a ten-day musical celebration taking 
place from April 13th – 22nd   Setting out to explore and celebrate the diverse constellation of 
music cultures that exist in Dublin City, MusicTown aims to unify the city, making its music 
relatable and accessible, instilling a sense of pride in Dublin’s musical heritage, whilst 
welcoming newcomers and visiting artists.  
 
The overall programme this year focuses on the themes of collaboration and community.  
Get ready for ten days of concerts, master classes, collaborations, workshops and 
composers, lyricists, conductors, choirs, musicians, producers, DJs and visual artists, from 
Opera, choral and contemporary classical to hip-hop, electronic, traditional, folk and rock 
taking place all over Dublin city.  
 
MusicTown concludes with a series of specially commissioned collaborative concerts in The 
Abbey Theatre to be announced over the month of March, featuring a host of artists from 
fields of trad, folk, classical, rock, literature, visual art and film.  www.musictown.ie 
 
 
 
 

Page 79

http://www.musictown.ie/


Public Art  
 
Planning permission was awarded for the Liam Mellows statue and project in Finglas to the 
Liam Mellows Memorial Committee subject to a number of conditions.  The Liam Mellows 
Working Group continues to meet and is working through a process with the Liam Mellows 
Memorial Committee to select and appoint an artist to sculpt the statue.      
 
The pavement based sculpture A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy has been safely removed 
and arrangements are being made to facilitate the artist in restoring the work before being 
re-instated in 2019.   
 
The Public Art Manager is progressing work on the commissioning of the Luke Kelly 
sculpture by Vera Klute and in finding a suitable location for the statue of Luke Kelly by John 
Coll.   
 
The commissioning process for the National Monument dedicated to the role of women 
leading to the foundation of the state is continuing with the Department of Culture, Heritage 
and the Gaeltacht.    
 
 
Artists Workspaces 
 
A list of sites have been identified by Housing and are now being considered by the Planning 
Department. 
 
Artists Housing:  
 
Several organisations, individuals and groups of Artists have approached the Arts Office to 
discuss the issue of housing for Artists. As no particular profession can be prioritised by a 
Local Authority this has led to Artists forming co-ops and working in conjunction with 
Housing Associations to begin the process of identifying sites and building low cost housing. 
 
The Arts Office has had preliminary meetings with The Housing Department to consider the 
issues and will work with Artists Resource Organisations to help them develop proposals. 
 
 
Contact: Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer 

Email:  ray.yeates@dublincity.ie 

Tel:  2227849 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80

mailto:ray.yeates@dublincity.ie


 
DUBLIN’S CULTURE CONNECTS  
 
Dublin’s Culture Connects, a Dublin City Council initiative, aims to connect Dubliners to their 
city through culture and conversation. We develop activities and events that bring 
communities together, and to life, all based on people’s stories, wishes and experiences. It’s 
all about activating and empowering people through making and taking part in culture. 
Dublin’s Culture Connects is implementing part of the Cultural Strategy of Dublin City 
Council, through listening, learning and sharing. 
Dublin’s Culture Connects currently comprises four core programmes. The raw material for 
all of these programmes comes from on-going engagement with Dublin citizens. 
 
THE NATIONAL NEIGHBOURHOOD 
We want every neighbourhood to know and ‘own’ their city’s cultural resources, so we build 
cultural projects in community settings. We connect artists, groups and villages with libraries, 
museums and creative places to deepen their understanding of each other and themselves. 
EU LAB 
We match partners with common interests to help them build projects and source European 
funding… and sometimes we do it the other way around. 
CULTURAL AUDIT AND MAP 
We give people choices and inform policymakers about the city’s culture by developing a 
comprehensive dynamic database and a user-friendly public website. 
FUNDRAISING FELLOWSHIP 
We strengthen and support Dublin cultural organisations and community groups by giving 
them the skills and confidence to fundraise, expanding their own impact and sharing their 
learning with others. 
 
THE NATIONAL NEIGHBOURHOOD  
The National Neighbourhood is active right now in 22 neighbourhoods across the city 
building on themes such as public realm, environment, local place-making and new Dublin 
stories. Some 35 community groups, schools, colleges and groups are working with 47 
artists on locally-based projects, connecting with the Area offices in all 5 administrative 
areas, City Arts Office, Dublin City Library & Archive and Dublin City Gallery The High Lane 
and the eight National Cultural Institutions in the City on activities that will culminate in April 
and May 2018. 
 
South Central  
 
The National Neighbourhood in Dublin’s South Central (Ballyfermot, Bluebell, Crumlin, 
Inchicore, Walkinstown, St James’ Hospital) has been focused on melodies and songs. 
Sounds are being sung at a Monday morning choir in St James; transformed into a new 
choral premiere in Hollybrook Lodge; rocked into a band night at Walkinstown; and 
composed into lullabies at Kylemore Community College. Along with our artist and 
community colleagues, Dublin’s Culture Connects is bringing these experiences to 
HeadSpace2018, a two-day conference on creative aging at Trinity College Dublin on 2 & 3 
March. HeadSpace2018 is focused on growing understanding in science that people’s health 
is affected by the ‘health’ of the places we live in, and our sense of belonging and 
connectedness; creativity, wellbeing and cultural connection. The best way to share our 
stories is to show people, not tell them, so we’ll present a showcase of some of The National 
Neighbourhood work in progress. This will include musician Sean Millar and Bluebell Youth 
and Community Centre presenting songs grown from conversations at their Breakfast Club;  
 
 

Page 81



Kylemore Community College lulling us with newly-written lullabies; and musician Robbie 
Blake and the National Doctors Choir performing the premiere of Hollybrook Lodge’s choral 
piece developed with residents, staff and carers, surrounded by lanterns made by those 
residents with artist Tom Meskell. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(Image: Community Choir at MISA, St James’s Hospital with Norah Walsh. Image by Kate 
Aston) 
 
North Central  
The National Neighbourhood in Dublin’s North Central (Clontarf, Coolock, Donnycarney, 
Fairview and Raheny) sees a lot happening outdoors for 2018, getting everyone out of their 
winter hibernation. Dancers are connecting local walking groups to their surroundings: 
dancers Justine Cooper and Muirne Bloomer are exploring patterns in nature and finding 
different ways to move through and appreciate our local parks (St Anne’s Park and Stardust 
Memorial Park). Fairview art and craft groups with the help of artist Evelyn D’Arcy and 
weekly workshops led by the Newgrange Willow Weavers, have designed and are installing 
a hand-woven Zen garden made of willow in Fairview Park. The garden is being made for 
the whole community to enjoy. This idea arose from Dublin’s Culture Connects’ ‘Tea and 
Chats’ engagement events, where the group commented that the park had been a big part of 
their lives; but that they didn’t use it as much now that they’re older. They decided they 
wanted to do something that made Fairview Park feel like “their place” again. 
 

 
(Image: Friends of Fairview installing a willow weaved structure in Fairview Park. Image by 
Ruth Medjber)  
 
Musicians Donal Gunne and Eithne Ní Cathain along with 23 cub scouts from 66 Naomh 
Eoin (Clontarf) gathered on Dollymount Strand for a litter pick. Not only were the intrepid cub 
scouts aiming to clean up their local beach, they were also on the lookout for pieces of litter 
that they could recycle into musical instruments. The scouts wanted to build a project around 
the local environment, they’ve decided to highlight, through music, the need to protect their 
coastline. They’ve been composing songs with the musicians, and in May they will perform 
their new songs for the public, on their recycled instruments, on the Clontarf coastline.  
 

Page 82



North West  
The National Neighbourhood in Dublin’s (Cabra and Finglas) has been focused on the 
treasures of the local area, in terms of its people, history and environment. The starting point 
is the community, their stories and special interests, garnered from conversations with 
residents of the Tolka River Valley from Finglas, Cabra and the Deaf Village, from age 5 to 
75. With the centenary year of women’s suffrage in 2018, singer songwriter Susan McKeown 
and visual artist Jane Groves are bringing to the surface the hidden stories of women in the 
area, while visual artist Claire Halpin is working in parallel exploring the hidden rivers. The 
project will culminate in a performance of musical, spoken word and projection by 
participating schools, community groups and artists from these and other nearby 
neighbourhoods at the National Museum Collins Barracks on 25 April 2018. 
 

 
 
(Image: Claire Halpin with St Malachy’s NS Finglas tracing the course of the Tolka River, 
guided by Michael Burke, DCC Environment and Transportation, Water Services Section. 
Image by Enda O’Brien)  
 

 
 
(Image: Claire Halpin with Cabra Deaf Village. Image by Brian Fleming) 
 
South East  
The National Neighbourhood in Dublin’s (Kevin Street, Patrick Street, Synge Street, 
Warrenmount, The Liberties and Rathmines) has been focused on building portraits of the 
city. Transition year students from Synge Street CBS, Warrenmount Presentation Secondary 
School, and St Patrick’s Cathedral Grammar School along with poet Enda Wyley and visual 
artist Yvonne Cullivan have been building a portrait of their city through words and images.  
 
They have visited the National Gallery – where they picked the winner of the Hennessy 
Portrait Prize – and the National Archives where they looked at old criminal records and 
maps showing how much and yet how little this historic part of Dublin has changed with its 
spires pointing skywards. 

Page 83



 
 
(Image: Transition Year students, Warrenmount Presentation Secondary surveying the city 
skyline from the National Archives. Image by Anne Maree Barry) 
 

 
 
(Image: Transition Year students, Synge Street CBS making viewfinders with artist Yvonne 
Cullivan. Image by Kathy Conlan) 
 
Central  
The National Neighbourhood in Dublin (Amiens Street, Ballybough, Mountjoy Square West, 
Marino, North Strand, Summerhill and The Complex Dublin 7) is focusing on the theme of 
identity, working with women’s groups and youth groups in Dublin 1 and 7.  Artists Colm 
Keegan (spoken word) and Nick Roth (music) are working with participants from SWAN 
Youth Service and Neighbourhood Youth Project 2 in Ballybough, to map the neighbourhood 
through story and sound.   
 
Artist Sorcha Kenny (theatre and performance) is working with the SAOL Project and other 
women’s groups to devise a participative arts project which we hope will resonate with 
women across the city, particularly in this centenary year of women’s suffrage. 
 
Mary Sheehan and Riona Sally Hartman are working with 2 mother and toddler groups in the 
Central Library and Chareville Mall Library to explore stories through music and drama and 
making new stories with the toddlers and their mothers. 

Page 84



 
 
(Image: Theatre Performance students, Marino CFE with Phil Kingston, Head of Community 
and Education at the Abbey Theatre. Image by Karl Leonard) 
 

 
 
(Image: NYP2 with poet Colm Keegan and musician Nick Roth checking out the local area in 
Dublin 1. Image by Linda Devlin) 
 
CULTURAL AUDIT & MAP 
The Cultural Map is developing a comprehensive database (which will link with the GIS 
system internally) and a user-friendly website of the city’s culture, spanning arts, heritage, 
sport, recreation, food, science, the environment. The technical service for the building of 
this dataset and interface was not awarded after an open tender process. Next steps are 
being discussed. 
Ongoing, however, is the work to collect data from Dublin City Council sections and wider 
through online surveys and connections with many bodies throughout Dublin. Further, we 
are working to generate varied and high-quality outputs for the cultural map that will 
complement the data. These include: 
Local Heroes: In-depth interviews with residents of Dublin from all walks of life, asking 
about their relationship with culture and the city. Currently there is an Open Call for artists to 
work with the interviewees to produce a series of 'portraits' that will capture and reflect 
participant’s stories. These portraits will be digitally mapped on our Dublin City Cultural Map.  
Connection to the City: This is a partnership project with The Trailblazery, currently in the 
research and development phase, exploring culture, civic engagement and emotional 
connections to the city. 

Page 85



What Makes You Smile?: An animation that will describe 'What makes Dubliners smile'; a 
question we have asked thousands of residents through all our engagement work to date. 
The animation takes the viewer on a journey around local landmarks with an original 
soundtrack based on the sounds of the city itself. 
Heart of the Village: Working with local residents and groups from every neighbourhood in 
Dublin to produce a single sentence that describes what is at the heart of their 'village'. 
Top 5 things to do: Collecting the 'top 5' recommendations of places to go and things to 
see from Airbnb hosts to produce a comprehensive picture of 'on the ground' personal 
highlights of the city. 
 
ENGAGEMENT  
Engage The City was linking communities and artists across Dublin to talk about life, 
stories, hopes and fears and express these conversations through creative means. Engage 
The City asked Dubliners to look at what Dublin is now and what it could be, to take the 
pulse of the city and share stories of the lives lived in our neighbourhoods. 10 artists and 
makers hosted 100 workshops locally across the City meeting communities and supporting 
them to express themselves through a variety of creative means. It was about researching, 
testing, experimenting and exploring. 
 

 
 
(Image: Drawing with Liz Niellson at Rialto Day centre) 
 
Engage the City delivered approximately 100 workshops with 1,000 engagements and 
creative exchanges taking place over 8 months. Artforms included architecture, visual arts, 
sound art, drama, research, weaving, textiles, printing, cooking and creative writing.  
The current project has come to an end and we are investigating how to continue with this 
artist – led engagement model in the future. 
 

 
 
(Image: City planning with architect Evelyn Darcy in Belmayne Youth Club) 

Page 86



 
Culture Club connects people to museums, galleries, libraries and other cultural venues in a 
fun and easy way. Through Culture Club, we are inviting people to get involved, broadening 
the reach of culture in Dublin to as many Dubliners as possible. Into its second year, Culture 
Club is now taking place in Dublin City Hall, Richmond Barracks, Dublin City Gallery The 
Hugh Lane and National Museum at Collins Barracks, National Library, National Archives, 
National Gallery, IMMA, Chester Beatty Library and other cultural sites and venues will be 
added to this list in the coming weeks. From November 2016 – December 2017 there were 
43 Culture Clubs in seven cultural organisations with 535 attendees from across Dublin City.  
 
 

 
 
(Image: Culture Club at Dublin City Gallery The High Lane December 2017) 
 
Tea & Chats are continuing across the city visiting groups at their regular meeting place and 
hearing their stories, wishes, ambitions and concerns. This work continues to inform the 
development of The National Neighbourhood. In the coming months we are developing a 
strand of Tea & Chats ensuring we engage with corporate Dublin and the diverse 
communities that swell the population of our neighbourhoods for just a few hours each day. 
 

 
 
(Image: Tea&Chats with Rossaveal Day Centre Ballyfermot) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



Upcoming Events :: March / April 2018  
 
Upcoming events March 2018 
 

Culture Club 
1. Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane: 2 March, 10.30am, ‘Sculpture in the Hugh Lane 
Collection’ 
2. Dublin City Hall: 7 March, 11am, ‘Jacob’s Biscuit Factory & Dublin: An Assorted 
History’ 
3. National Gallery of Ireland: 8 March, 5.00pm, ‘Emil Nolde’ 
4. Chester Beatty Library: 13 March, 2.30pm, ‘Images of the Divine in Christianity’ 
5. Richmond Barracks: 15 March, 11.00am Theme TBC 
6. IMMA: 20 March, 10.30am, ‘Coastlines’ 
7. National Library of Ireland: 26 March, 2.00pm, ‘Yeats and the Irish Cultural Revival’ 
8. National Archives of Ireland: 28 March, 11.00am,  
9. National Museum of Ireland: 30 March, 11.30am  
 

 

 
Fundraising Fellowship Dublin : Introduction to Marketing 
The next event in the series is an Introduction to Marketing for Community Groups and 
Arts Organisations on Wednesday 14 March at Temple Bar Gallery & Studios from 
6.00pm-9.00pm. Please come along and spread the word – any group can book a place 
at info@dublinscultureconnects.ie 
 

 

 
The National Neighbourhood 
Building on the impacts over the last 12 months, new projects are beginning to be 
developed as part of The National Neighbourhood. As referenced above, the following 
takes place in March:  

 HeadSpace2018, TCD 2 & 3 March – performances from South Central area 
groups 

- Walk, Friday 2 March at 12.30pm  

- Sean Millar + Bluebell Youth & Community Centre, Friday 2 March at 4pm 

- Kylemore Community College, Saturday 3 March at 12.50pm 

- Robbie Blake and the Irish Doctors Choir, Saturday 3 March at 4.30pm 

  

 
Upcoming events April 2018 
 

 
 
Culture Club 

1. Dublin City Hall: 4 April, 11am, Theme TBC, 
2. Dublin City Gallery The Hugh Lane: 6 April, 10.30am, Theme TBC 
3. Chester Beatty Library: 10 April, 2.30pm, ‘Japanese Art’ 
4. National Gallery of Ireland: 12 April, 5.00pm, Theme TBC 
5. National Archives of Ireland: 18 April, 11.00am Theme TBC 
6. Richmond Barracks: 19 April, 11.00am 
7. National Photographic Archive: 23 April, 2.00pm, ‘Photo Detectives’ 
9. IMMA: 25 April, 10.30am, ‘Brian Maguire, War Changes Its Address: The 
Aleppo Paintings’ 
10. National Museum of Ireland: 27 April, 11.30am, Theme TBC 

 
 
 

Page 88

mailto:info@dublinscultureconnects.ie


The National Neighbourhood 
Building on the impacts over the last 12 months, new projects are beginning to be 
developed as part of The National Neighbourhood. There are upcoming events in April 
– see below - with more to be confirmed which we will inform you of: 

 National Museum of Ireland, Collins Barracks 25 April – ‘Women of the Tolka 
River Valley’ performance 

 Charleville Mall Library, date TBC – outdoor theatre and soundscape 
performance 

 MISA, St James’s Hospital, Dublin 8, date TBC - St James’s Choir performance 

 St Anne’s Park, Farandole - an open chain community dance, 8 April 

 
Artists currently working with Dublin’s Culture Connects  
 

Colm Keegan 
Karl Leonard 
Mary Sheehan 
Nick Roth 
Padraig Baggott 
Ríona Sally Hartman 
Sorcha Kenny 
Claire Halpin 
Enda O’Brien 
Jane Groves 
Robbie Blake 
Shane Byrne 
Veronica Dyas  
Liz Nilsson 

Johnny White 
Susan McKeown 
Anne Maree Barry 
Enda Wyley  
Yvonne Cullivan 
Daniel Keane 
Donal Gunne 
Eithne Ní Cathain 
Justine Cooper 
Killian Waters 
Michelle Cahill 
Michelle McMahon 
Niki Collier 
John Conway 

Muirne Bloomer 
Newgrange Willow Weavers 
Ross Ryder 
Ruth Medjber 
Cian Finlay 
Norah Walsh 
Sean Millar 
Sinead White 
Tom Meskill 
Tommy Casby 
Evelyn D’Arcy 
Ines Metzner 
Joan Somers Donnelly 

 
Groups currently participating in Dublin’s Culture Connects  
 

Crosscare, Arran Quay 
DVD Club, Central Library  
Home Visitors Group, National College of Ireland  
YPAR International Working Group, Ballybough 
Neighbourhood Youth Project (NYP2), Ballybough 
Theatre Performance - Marino CFE, North Strand 
New Communities Partnership, Dorset Street 
Ozanam House Resource Centre, Mountjoy Square 
High Hopes Choir, Dublin 1 
Saol Project, Amiens Street 
Swan Youth Service, North Strand 
Barbara Ward Community Centre, Dublin 3 
High Hopes Choir, The Complex, Dublin 7 
An Siol, Holy Parish Family Community Centre,  
Stoneybatter  
Headway, Stoneybatter 
Aesóg, Stoneybatter 
Akidwa, Dorset Street 
Kilbarrack Coast Community Programme 
Doras Buí, Coolock 
Stardust Memorial Park Walking Group, Coolock 
Siulinn Walking Club, Sutton 
Carleton Community Centre, Marino 
Toddler Group, Marino Library 

Page 89



St Anne's Walking Group, Raheny 
Raheny Walking Group, Raheny 
Various Language Exchange groups, Raheny Library 
Knitting Group, Raheny Library 
Raheny Heritage Society 
Raheny Summer Project 
Clontarf Historical Society 
Holy Faith Secondary School, Clontarf 
Clontarf Cub Scouts 
Kara, St John The Baptist Resource Centre,  
Clontarf Road 
Maryfield College, Drumcondra 
Belmayne Summer Programme 
Fairview & Ballybough Art & Craft Group  
Spectrum Youth Theatre, Donnycarney 
Cabra Men's Shed, Cabra Parkside Community Centre 
Art Group, St. Finbarr's Court, Cabra West         
Bingo Club, Christ the King Community Centre, Cabra    
Cabra Parkside Community Sports Centre Staff 
Exercise Class, Cabra Parkside Community Centre           
Go for Life, Cabra Parkside Community Centre   
Cabra History & Folklore Project, Parkside Community  
Centre   
Knitting Group, Sancta Maria Day Centre, Cabra             
Naomh Fionnbarra GAA Club, Fassaugh Avenue, Cabra             
Sancta Maria Day Centre, Cabra             
Silver Surfers, St. Finbarr's Court, Cabra  
Stitch 'n' Bitch, Christ the King Community Centre,  
Cabra 
Daycare participants, Irish Deaf Village Cabra 
Daughters of Charity, Navan Road, Cabra   
Holy Family School for the Deaf, Cabra 
Gaelscoil Bharra, Cabra 
St Declan’s College, Cabra 
Cabra for Youth 
Broom Bridge Educate Together  
Deaf Village Day Care Centre  
Baby Book & Toddler Book Club, Ballymun Library        
Ballymun Breastfeeding Support Group  
Geraldstown House Countrywomen's Association (ICA), Ballymun         
University of the Third Age (U3A Ballymun)        
Ballymun Writers Group 
Forever Young Chorus, Brookfield Court, Finglas            
St Malachy's National School, St Helena's Rd, Finglas  
Theatrical Cavaliers, Phoenix Park 
The Golden Girls, Christ the King Community Centre          
Knitting Group, Walkinstown Library  
Walk, Walkinstown 
Age Action Coffee Morning, The Walk 
Breastfeeding Support Group, The Walk 
Walkinstown Golden Years, Walkinstown 
Simon Community, New Island Street, Dublin 8 
Bulgarian Community in Dublin, Dublin 8 
Rialto Daycare Centre 
D8 Men’s Shed, Dolphin’s Barn 

Page 90



Let’s Talk Garden Group, Bridgefoot Street Men’s Shed 
Parent & Toddler Group, Dolphin’s Barn Library 
MISA, St James’s Hospital 
Hollybrook Lodge, Inchicore 
Bulfin Court Day Care Centre, Inchicore 
Inchicore Men’s Shed 
St Michael’s Resource Centre, Inchicore 
Inchicore Ladies Active Retirement Group 
Book Clubs, Inchicore Library 
Knitting Group, Inchicore Library 
Mondays at The Mess, Richmond Barracks, Inchicore 
Bluebell Youth and Community Centre, Bluebell 
Bluebell Ladies Club, Bluebell 
Writers Groups, Ballyfermot Library 
Widow’s Group, Ballyfermot Library 
Rossaveal Day Centre, Ballyfermot 
Ballyfermot Men’s Shed, Ballyfermot 
Smashing Barriers, Ballyfermot Library 
Kylemore Community College, Ballyfermot 
Active Age, Stanaway Court, Crumlin 
Brú Youth Service, Crumlin 
Men’s Health Initiative, The Bosco, Drimnagh 
Sikh Community, Guru Nanak Darbar, Sandymount 
Friends of Green Spaces, Verschoyle Court, Dublin 2  
Friends of Green Spaces, Mount Drummond Court,  
Dublin 2 
RADE, New Street, Dublin 8 border with Dublin 2 
Speakers Groups, Rathmines Library 
U3A, Rathmines Library 
Rathmines Senior College 
Golden Wonders Club, Carmelite Community Centre,  
Aungier Street 
Women’s Group, Lantern Intercultural Centre, Synge St  
Synge Street CBS (TY), Synge Street 
St Patricks Cathedral Grammar School (2nd Year),  
Patrick Street 
Presentation College, Warrenmount (TY) 
Liberties Senior College, The Liberties 
Men on the Move, Terenure Active Retirement 
Garden Gang, Corrib Road, Terenure West 

 
 
Contact: Isuelt Byrne, 
  Director, Culture Connects 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



EVENTS SECTION 
 

 
 
TEMPLE BAR TRADFEST 24th – 28th January 
 
TradFest Temple Bar started out in 2006 as a small niche traditional music festival, a first for 
Dublin. This festival showcases both Irish and international traditional and folk artists, while 
also providing a stage to promote the next generation of Irish musicianship.  It has gained a 
reputation as the one of the biggest and best traditional Irish music and culture festivals in 
Ireland.  It is now a firm fixture on the National and International festival calendar, attracting 
thousands of national and international visitors. 
New to 2018 was an expanded TRADKIDS, part of the TradFest Children's Hub, there were 
many drop-in sessions for beginners to try out different traditional instruments. 

 

 

Page 92



 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS 
 

DATE EVENT LOCATION 

15th - 19th March St. Patrick's Festival   Various City locations 

18th March Gannon Cup Race   River Liffey 

19th March Liffey Descent 
Starting at Leixlip and finishing on the      
River Liffey at Custom House Quay     

23rd - 25th March Offset - Graphic Design 
Festival 

Various City locations 

31st March - 4th April Follow the Vikings Festival Wood Quay Amphitheatre and other 
locations 

1st April Annual Easter 
Commemoration Parade 

O’Connell Street 

 
 
FILMING UPDATE 
 

A number of national and international productions have recently been shooting in Dublin.  A 

number of commercials for Aer Lingus, American Airlines and Korean Airways have been 

facilitated, which will be promoting Dublin as a tourist destination on long and short haul 

flights around the world. 

 

Currently in production 

Several TV series have returned to shoot and produce their shows in Dublin. Critically 

acclaimed hit US TV series “Into The Badlands” is returning to Dublin and Wicklow for 

Season 3 of the show.  

 

Page 93



 Filming on location on DCC property at Vartry, Reservoir  
 
Upcoming Productions 
 
“The Girl From Mogadishu” is based on the testimony of Ifrah Ahmed, who made the 
extraordinary journey to escape war torn Somalia and emerged as one of the world's 
foremost international activists. This feature will be shot in Dublin and Morocco. 
“Christmas Perfection “ will be shot in and Dublin and Wicklow and the characters are based 
in US and Ireland.  It tells the story of an artist who magically gets transported to a 
mysterious never ending Christmas wonderland in Ireland, and finds the meaning of true 
love.  
 
 
Contact: Alison King, Administrative Officer 
Email:  ailson.king@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2223145 

 
 

TALL SHIPS REGATTA 2018  
 
An estimated 15 ships participating in a Tall Ships Regatta, will stop over in Dublin from 

Friday the 1st June until Monday the 4th June, 2018. The proposed berthing locations for the 

ships are Sir John Rogerson’s Quay and Charlotte Quay, Grand Canal.  This event is part of 

a smaller race series organised by Sail Training international and is not on the same scale 

as previous Tall Ships races hosted in Ireland. The focus for this event is on the sail trainees 

and ships crews, their visitor experience in Dublin and facilities for the ships, while in port. 50 

trainees from Dublin will participate in the race leg from Liverpool to Dublin”. 

 

Contact, Mary Weir, 
Administrative Officer, 

Email:  mary.weir@dublincity.ie 
Tel:  2223302 

Page 94

mailto:ailson.king@dublincity.ie
mailto:mary.weir@dublincity.ie


 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 23
rd

 November 2017, p.1 

 

 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 

12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 10 

 

 
Arts, Culture, Recreation and Community Strategic Policy Committee 

 
Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee - Fochoiste na gCuimhneachán 

 
Thursday 23rd November at 2.00pm 

Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Vincent Jackson (Chair) 
Cllr Paddy McCartan  
Cllr Cieran Perry 
Cllr Nial Ring 
Cllr Mannix Flynn  

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Margaret Hayes, City Librarian  
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
 

 
  

1. Apologies – Lord Mayor Micheal MacDonncha 
 

2. Minutes of the meeting of 18th September approved with one amendment to remove 
“Also in attendance: Cormac Moore, Historian-in-Residence, North Central area; Dr 
Darragh Gannon, Historian-in-Residence, Central area” 

 
3. Matters arising:  Cllr. Flynn requested update on Tenement Museum as it was funded 

as 1916/2016 permanent reminder project. DCC Heritage Officer will be asked to report 
for next meeting. Boland’s Mills 1916 Plaque – new building development at 
Clanwilliam House maybe ready after 2020. Cllr. Ring will communicate this to 
Convenor of Boland’s Mills Garrison Group.  

 
4. Correspondence: email from Decade of Centenaries/Commemoration Unit of the 

Department of Culture, Heritage and the Gaeltacht with invitation to contribute to public 
consultation process for commemorations in 2018-23.  
 

5. Commemorations programme 2017 and 2018: B. Teeling gave an update on 2017 
programme: Dublin Festival of History featured talks on many significant 2017 
anniversaries including Irish and international events. The 2017 Festival was the most 
successful to date with 7,700 attendances at 90 free events.   

The exhibition Jacob’s Biscuit Factory and Dublin: an assorted history on display in City Hall 
from 27 November until end of March 2018 to include free tours on Saturdays with the 
exhibition researcher Wendy Williams.  

B. Teeling reported on projects for 2018 commemorations including exhibitions on: 

 Suffragist City: Women and the Vote in January and February (to include seminar on 
17th February) 

Page 95



 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 23
rd

 November 2017, p.2 

 

 Irish women and the Great War in March and April.  

 Armistice/Returning home in November and December  

City Archivist is working with Ardmheara on seminar on Conscription crisis for 18 April 2018 
in the Mansion House. 

Cllr Ring enquired about Bliain na Gaeilge 2018. M. Hayes reported that libraries will focus 
on developing Irish language book collections and language exchanges.  

Update on Decade of Commemoration grants: Grants awarded as follows - 

Central Area: €8,500; North West Area: €3,485; North Central Area:  €1,800; South Central 
Area: €11,700; South East Area: €10,350 

Workshops in each area in New Year on grant application process and HIR project. 

6. Historians-in-Residence programme: historians continuing to work with groups 
across the city and have been focusing on Men’s Sheds and secondary schools. They 
have set-up new local history/heritage groups in Liberties and Coolock; delivering Irish 
Revolution lecture series in Wheatfield prison; Donal Fallon working on project with 
Tenement museum. History on Your Doorstep will launch in New Year. Darragh 
Gannon and Brian Hanley have resigned and Bernard Kelly has joined the team. An 
event will be held soon to highlight their work and the work of DCC Decade of 
Commemorations. 

 
7. A.O.B. New exhibition in DCLA on Patrick O’Connell – the man who saved FC 

Barcelona on display until 20 December. 
 

Cllr Flynn raised problem of inaccurate information on city walking tours and need to 
address this. B. Teeling will review and report back.  
 
Cllr. Flynn pointed out that City Hall plaque is inaccurate as references “Republic of 
Ireland”, should be Irish Republic.  
 

8. Date of next meeting: 31st January 2018 at 2pm.  

   

 
 
 

Page 96



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

12th March 2018 
 

Item No. 11 

 

 
 

Commemorative Naming Committee 
Minutes of Meeting held on 23rd November 2017  

1.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

Attendance  

 

Members Officials Present 
 

Cllr. Cieran Perry (Chairperson) Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Cllr Nial Ring Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer 
Cllr Paddy McCartan Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 
 Gabrielle McClelland, Staff Officer 

 
Apologies: 

Ardmhéara Micheál MacDonncha 

Cllr Séamas McGrattan 

Cllr Frank Kennedy  

 

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 18th September 2017. 

   Action: Agreed  

2. Matters arising 

   Action: No matters arising  

3. Liam Mellows Sub-Group update  
 

 Management gave an update of the progress of the Liam Mellows Sub-Group.  There 
 are various issues currently being discussed such as planning, funding, wording on 
 the plinth.  The committee have decided to go for full planning permission rather than 
 a part VIII.  The approximate cost of the statue is €53,500.  The wording on the plinth 
 includes a list of names of people who died for the Irish Republic.  Management 
 reminded members that permission should be sought from living descendents of 
 those listed as stated in the policy document for Commemorative Naming of 
 Infrastructure and the Provision of Monuments, Memorials and Plaques. The Liam 
 Mellows Committee will provide an update at a meeting on 12th December in relation 
 to the possibility of a selective call for artists. A discussion on the function of the Sub-
 Group took place.  
  
 Action: Noted.  Keep members updated. 
 

 

Page 97



4. Plaques/Memorials/Infrastructure Proposals 
 

o Frank Flood Bridge 
 

 Members were informed that the unveiling of the bridge will be organised with the 
 assistance from the North West Area Office.  The bridge is currently undergoing 
 refurbishment works and it was suggested that the unveiling should possibly take 
 place in conjunction with the completion of the works.  The original agreed date for 
 the unveiling was March 14th.  The date of the completion of the works is not yet 
 known but it is envisaged that it will be January 2018. 
 Action: Check with the proposer if the date of March 14th could be moved to an 
 earlier date. 
 

o Markey Robinson, Artist – Application 
 

 Concerns were raised regarding this application.  As many artists exhibited their 
 works at this gallery, members felt that it could be seen to select one artist over 
 others.  They also referred to the policy document which states “the person/s must 
 have made a unique and outstanding contribution to the life or history of Dublin 
 through outstanding achievement, distinctive service or significant community 
 contribution”.  
 Action: Refer to the Arts and Culture Advisory Group for their advice.  
 

o Welsh Chapel – Update 
 

Management informed members that after another site visit and meeting with the 
tenant of this building, that the tenants are now considering re-painting the exterior of 
this building, which would then allow the erection of the plaque.  DCC may offer a 
financial contribution towards these works. 
 
Action: Arrange to meet the tenants before Christmas to progress these works. 
Keep members informed. 
 

5. A.O.B.  
 

 Management informed members that an e-mail was received in relation to re-naming 
 Hume Street to John Hume Street. 
 Action:  It was agreed this is not a matter for the Commemorative Naming 
 Committee. It is a matter for the South East Area Committee. 
 
 Next Meeting: Wednesday 31st January 2018  
 

_________________ 

Cllr Cieran Perry, 

Chairperson.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



1 
 

 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 12 

 

 
 

Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday 

30th November 2017, 9.30 a.m. Council Chambers, City Hall 

 
Present: Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Ray Yeates, Elaina Ryan, Ruairí Ó Cuív, Gerry Kerr, 
Iseult Byrne, Maolíosa Boyle, Willie White, Barbara Dawson, Shane DeBlacam, Cllr John 
Lyons, Cllr Mannix Flynn,    
Apologies: Cllr Claire Byrne, Hugh Fahey, Brendan Teeling 
In Attendance: Vera Smyth 

 
1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 28th September 2017 
The minutes were approved, proposed by Shane DeBlacam, seconded by Maolíosa Boyle.  
 
2. Matters Arising  
Willie White enquired about the situation regarding Mr Screen by Vincent Brown.  The Public 
Art Manager explained that he was still pursuing the matter of reaching agreement with the 
Dublin Cinema Group that it be returned to display in the public realm preferably displayed 
outside a cinema in the City Centre.  Councillor Mannix Flynn stated categorically that Dublin 
City Council had ownership of the statue as this was one of a series of works commissioned 
to celebrate the Dublin Millennium. The Public Art Manager agreed to write to the Cinema 
Group in this regard.  
 
3. Establishment of Dublin Culture Company  
Gerry Kerry raised the issue of why the report by the Chief Executive on the formation of 
Dublin Culture Company had not been brought before the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 
before presentation to the SPC.  This viewpoint was also endorsed by Cllr Mannix Flynn.  
Members of the Advisory Group requested more detailed information about the formation 
and operation of the company.  It was agreed that the matter would be discussed at the next 
meeting of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group and to invite the Chief Executive to attend.   
 
4. City Arts Officer Report 
The City Arts Officer gave updates on the Creative Ireland Programme and in particular on 
the programme with schools. He gave a progress report on the Arts Office Grants 
Assessment which included external assessors as well City Councillors.  He also reported 
on plans for artists work spaces. Six locations that are not suitable for housing have been 
proposed by the Housing Department. He also explained how he had hosted a seminar in 
the LAB on Workplace Harassment in the Arts and about policies to address this issue.  
 
The City Arts Officer also presented the report on the Arts Office activities including the 
exhibition in the LAB Gallery Future Proof which brought together the work of eight artists 
collaborating with scientists.  He also reported on the winter programme for Children’s Art in 
Libraries concentrated on two Creative Hubs: Coolock and Ballyfermot.  I Am Baba a new 
theatre work for babies ages 0 -12 months, was commissioned under the Exploring and 
Thinking initiative of the four Dublin Councils. 
 

Page 99



2 
 

He also reported that the Arts Office team of Liz Coman, Hugh Fahey and Maura Carty are 
involved in Permission to Wonder, a 3-year project funded by the EU’s Erasmus+ 
programme which aims to support educators from local arts and education communities to 
test the Visual Thinking Strategies method to enhance learning with visual arts.  
  
5. Public Art 
The Public Art Manager presented his report on ongoing commissions under the Public Art 
Programme.  
He also gave verbal updates on the work of the Luke Kelly Working Group and the Liam 
Mellows Working Group. He also gave an update on progress on the commissioning of the 
National Monument to mark the role which women played in the foundation of the state, a 
commission which is being funded by the Department of Culture, Heritage and the 
Gaeltacht. The Group was informed that BEL, the Environment and Energy Agency in the 
Brussels-Capital region contacted Dublin City Council to request permission to reproduce 
photographs of Sven Anderson’s sound installation Continuous Drift in Meeting House 
Square and the (as yet) incomplete sound environment in Smithfield as part of BEL EXPO, a 
permanent exhibition for the general public.  
  
Kevin’s Street Library Public Art Commission 
Cllr Mannix Flynn requested a report from the Public Art Manager on the process leading to 
the appointment of artist Alan Phelan for the Kevin Street Library Public Art Commission.  
The Public Art Manager agreed to provide this without delay.  

 
Proposals for Permanent Art 
 
Statuette of Thomas Dudley – ‘Bang Bang’ by Joey Honan 
Artist and magician Joey Honan made a proposal to the Lord Mayor to commission a bronze 
statuette of the Dublin character Thomas Dudley known as Bang Bang.  Ard-Mhéara Micheál 
MacDonncha referred the matter to the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group for a 
recommendation.  
 
Recommendation 
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously recommended not to commission the 
statuette of Thomas Dudley as a life size statue had been rejected in January 2010 on the 
grounds that not many people remembered ‘Bang Bang’ any more and that the notion of 
commemorating ‘eccentrics’ is not necessarily sensitive to the person’.  A further 
consideration was that there was no obvious context in which the statuette could be 
displayed and no city collection wished to add this work to their collection.   
 

Temporary Decommissioning  
 
A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy 
This pavement based sculpture on Sackville Place was commissioned in 2004 by Dublin City 
Council with support from CIÉ.  The artwork commemorates those killed and wounded in the 
two bombings on the street in 1972 and 1973.  Dublin City Council is planning public realm 
improvement works on the street and in addition, planning permission has been granted for 
a hotel beside the location of the work.  It is therefore planned to temporarily remove the 
artwork and to reinstate it at the same location or very close to it, after the public realm 
works are complete.  The Public Art Manager has met with the artist Thomas Duffy, who is a 
son of the bus conductor Thomas Duffy who was killed by the 1973 bomb, and a strategy 
has been agreed in principle that while the work is removed, he will clean and restore the 
bronze in preparation for the sculpture’s reinstatement.  The artist will be paid a fee for the 
work undertaken.   
 
Recommendation  
The Arts and Cultural Advisory Group unanimously agreed to support the temporary 
decommissioning of A Fallen Bouquet by Thomas Duffy on the terms set out above.  

Page 100



3 
 

 
6. Dublin Culture Connects Report 
Iseult Byrne presented the Dublin Culture Connects report.  It covered the many projects that 
are being carried out, including Community Engagement programmes, Tea & Chats, Culture 
Club, Engage the City, The National Neighbourhood, EU Lab, The Cultural Map, Fundraising 
Fellowship Dublin, Dublin City Council’s sections currently planning projects with Dublin’s 
Culture Connects, The National Neighbourhood, Fundraising Fellowship, Culture Night Café, 
Irish Sign Language Awareness Week workshop, Zeminar, ConneXions, Broom Bridge 
Mural, The Knowledge Information Exchange Workshop.  
 
7. Dublin City Gallery the Hugh Lane 
The Gallery Director reported on projects and events in the gallery including capital works 
programme, Sheriff Street Project Walk with Light, Eithne Jordan Tableau and The Ocean 
after Nature exhibitions, Dublin Gallery weekend and Christmas activities.   
  
8. Public Libraries  
The report on public libraries reflected statists for quarter 3 of 2017, new City Library and 
Parnell Square Cultural Quarter, Commemorations – Historian in residence, Creative 
Ireland/UNESCO City of Literature, Dublin North Inner City Project, Dublin Festival of 
History, SWIFT350, Science Week and projects update.   
 
9. A.O.B.  

 Next meeting will take place on Wednesday the 17th of January 2018 in the Richard 
O’Carroll Room, City Hall at 9.30 a.m.  

 
 
 

Page 101





1 
 

 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 13 

 

 
Arts and Cultural Advisory Group 

Breviate of draft Minutes of Meeting held on Wednesday 17th January 2018 
9.30 a.m. Council Chambers, City Hall 
 

1. Minutes of previous meeting held on 30th November 2017 
The Minutes were amended to note that Paula Murphy had sent her apologies for the last 
meeting. The minutes were the approved, proposed by Cllr. Mannix Flynn, seconded by 
Gerry Kerr.  
 
2. Matters Arising  
No matters arising.  

 
3. Establishment of Dublin Culture Company  
Assistant Chief Executive Richard Shakespeare made a presentation on the Dublin City 
Council Culture Company.  He informed the meeting about the history of Dublin Culture 
Connects and the future functions of the new Company.  
 
Cllr. Mannix Flynn expressed his concern about the following:  
 

 The company will be based in Henrietta Street Tenement Museum 

 Could create a duplication of activities conducted by other departments/organisations 
of Dublin City Council 

 Budget to provide salaries for up to 30 staff could consume the funds allocated for 
activities     

 
Gerry Kerry noted that he discussed the issue with Richard Shakespeare at a previous 
meeting and that many of his concerns have been allayed. He also noted that his 
understanding was that Dublin City Council Culture Company will create good conditions for 
its staff and that workers would be protected from issues of deterioration in the labour 
market.  Gerry Kerry also suggested having a Public Partnership Network representation on 
the company Board.  
 
Richard Shakespeare addressed the comments of Cllr. Mannix Flynn and Gerry Kerr:  
 

 That the branding and name of the company as Dublin City Council Culture 
Company was to have it overtly identified with the City Council. 

 That the policy for the company is being developed in the right direction.  

 That he wanted to hold onto the Advisory Group for the Tenement Museum and also 
the Advisory Group for Dublin Culture Connects    

 That the location of the company at the top of Henrietta Street museum would benefit 
the museum 

 That there is an opportunity to work with the libraries and ACAG 

 A wish to spend more on events than on the process 

 That the Public Partnership Network has a possibility to influence the company work  
 
Cllr. Mannix Flynn noted that a serious consideration and a number of workshops would be 
required prior to the company creation.  

Page 103



2 
 

 
Cllr. Claire Byrne expressed her concerns regarding:  
 

 The source of funding for the company 

 Whether there will be a remit to deliver studio spaces 

 What is the next step 
 
Richard Shakespeare addressed these concerns:  
 

 Funding will be provided by DCC, Creative Ireland and through sources not available 
for DCC 

 There is no remit to deliver studio spaces 

 The next step is to get the best possible outcome for the company guided by 
specialists  

  
Cllr. Áine Clancy noted that a lot of work had already been done, workshops have been held 
and suggested to have a meeting with HR and Finance Department to discuss the issues 
raised at this meeting.  
 
Cllr. Mannix Flynn noted that he was concerned about a rushed decision to establish this 
company and that he had no confidence in branding.  
 
Cllr. Áine Clancy invited the external experts to share their opinions on the issue. Shane 
deBlacam noted that the restoration of Henrietta Street had been a significant achievement. 
Paula Murphy expressed her concern for the company’s future beyond 2018 and its ability to 
last.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
It was recommended that Richard Shakespeare will meet with Cllr. Mannix Flynn between 
the SCP and next meeting of the City Council to discuss the concerns and give a feedback.  
 
4. A.O.B.  
 

 To work out the schedule of meetings for the rest of the year as requested by Paula 
Murphy. 

 

 Cllr. Mannix Flynn requested that the Public Art Manager report on the Kevin Street 
library commission to the next meeting of the South East Area Committee. 
 

 Brian Teeling informed the meeting that the Kevin Street library building is back in a 
possession of the library and the library is planned to open in April 2018. 
 

 Gerry Kerr reported on the Passport for Leisure initiative and how it has evolved. The 
cultural aspect would be separated from leisure.  He expressed an idea of connecting 
Dublin City Council Culture Company with the cultural side of this initiative. 
 

 Brendan Teeling reported that the Commemorative Name Committee had received 
an application from the Oriel Gallery to install a plaque dedicated to the painter 
Markey Robinson on the façade of the gallery and that the Committee had requested 
the consideration and advice of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group.  The criteria for 
historical plaques were discussed and it was noted that the artist had been born and 
also died in Belfast and that his connections to Dublin were not as strong as other 
artists. 
 

Page 104



3 
 

 In addition, it was noted that this was still an operating commercial gallery and that 
Markey Robinson was only one of many artists who exhibited in the gallery and that 
this could set precedence for a number of plaques been placed on the building.  
Therefore, it was recommended not to support this proposal for a Dublin City 
Commemorative Plaque 
 

 Cllr. Mannix Flynn requested a report from the Heritage Officer on the built Heritage 
of Dublin City Council. It was recommended to include the reports of Heritage Officer 
and Conservation Officer at the next meeting.  

     

 The next meeting will take place on Thursday the 1st of March 2018 in the Richard 
O’Carroll Room, City Hall at 9.30 a.m.  

 
Present: Cllr Áine Clancy (Chair), Richard Shakespeare, Cllr Claire Byrne, Gerry Kerr, 
Sarah Costigan, Shane DeBlacam, Paula Murphy, Barbara Dawson, Brendan Teeling, 
Ruairí Ó Cuív, Iseult Byrne, Cllr John Lyons, Cllr Mannix Flynn, Hugh Fahey 
   
Apologies: Elaina Ryan, Maolíosa Boyle, Willie White, Ray Yeates, Charles Duggan  
 
In Attendance: Vera Smyth 
 

Page 105





 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 31
st
 January 2018, p.1 

 

 

 

 
Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 

 
12th March 2018 

 
Item No. 14 

 

 
 

Arts, Culture, Recreation and Community Strategic Policy Committee 
 

Breviate of Draft Minutes of meeting of Commemorations Committee - Fochoiste na 
gCuimhneachán 

 
Wednesday 31st January at 2.00pm 

Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 
 

1. Apologies – Margaret Hayes 
 

2. Minutes of the meeting of 23rd November 2017 approved. 
 

3. Matters arising:  Walking tours: not role of DCC to regulate walking tours, members 
referred to Fáilte Ireland website. No update received on Tenement Museum.   

 
4. Correspondence: none 

 
5. Commemorations programme 2018: B. Teeling reported that “History in Dublin’s 

Communities: a Celebration” will take place on 1st February with 150 groups invited to 
receive cert from Lord Mayor. Suffragist City – Women and the vote in Dublin city 
exhibition in DCLA until end of February accompanied by seminar on 17th February “New 
Voices in Women’s History”. 
 

6. Draft submission for Expert Advisory Group on Commemorations 1918-23 circulated; 
members to respond by 9th February. 
 

7. Historians in Residence: T. Doyle reported that the project has been extended to the end 
of 2018 with recruitment soon for new panel to recruit Central area historian. New 
Facebook page, social media presence and video created. For new contract panel, Cllrs 
Perry and Ring requested greater emphasis on experience above qualifications. Cllr 
Perry requested a 2017 report from each historian.  

 
8. Incorporation of a 'Flanders Fields Memorial’ into the re-development of the Peace 

Garden, Christchurch: L. Moore informed the committee of a proposal from the Flanders 
Government to create a memorial to the 50,000 Irishmen that died in the Flanders Fields 
in World War I as a partnership between Flanders and the City of Dublin. This would 
involve bringing soil from Flanders to be incorporated into a landscaped feature in the 
Peace Garden. A discussion ensued with councillors Perry, Flynn, Ring and 
MacDonncha opposed to the plan. Cllr. McCartan was open to the proposal. Chair 
advised that it will be up to the Area Committee to ultimately decide but that the report to 
the Area Committee should reflect the views of the Commemorations Committee. 

 

Page 107



 

Dublin City Council – Commemorations Committee – Draft Minutes 31
st
 January 2018, p.2 

 

9. Countess Markievicz statue: Chair sent this motion to City Council agenda in Nov/Dec 
2017.  

 

10. Date of next meeting: 29th March at 2pm.   
 

Councillors/Members Present Officials Present 

Cllr Vincent Jackson (Chair) 
Árdmheara Micheal MacDonncha  
Cllr Paddy McCartan 
Cllr Cieran Perry 
Cllr Nial Ring 
Cllr Mannix Flynn  

Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Tara Doyle, Dublin City Public Libraries 
Leslie Moore, Parks Superindent 

 

Page 108



 

 

 

Report to Arts, Culture and Recreation SPC 
 

12th March 2018 
 

Item No. 15 

 

 
 

Commemorative Naming Committee 
Breviate of Draft Minutes of Meeting held on 31st January 2018 

3.00 p.m. Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall 
 

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 23rd November 2017. 
   Action: Agreed  
 

2. Matters arising 
   Action: No matters arising  
 

3. Motion submitted by Cllr Nial Ring 

 

“That this committee agrees that a fitting memorial to the Four Masters of 
Cullenswood House, Ranelagh (Padraig & Willie Pearse, Con Colbert and Thomas 
MacDonagh), executed for their part in The Rising, be located on the Ranelagh 
Village Triangle to mark their ultimate sacrifice in the cause of Ireland’s freedom”. 
 
Following a brief discussion, it was agreed that this Motion should be referred to the 
South East Area Committee. 
Action: Refer to the South East Area Committee. 
 

4. Liam Mellows Sub-Group update  
The Public Art Manager gave an update of the progress of the Liam Mellows Sub-
Group.  There are ongoing meetings.  One of the major factors is commissioning the 
statue itself.  He reported that the Liam Mellows Memorial Committee had agreed to 
a selection process to commission the artist for the statue.  Artists will be invited to 
make a submission including a maquette for a fee.    

 The Chair thanked Ruairi O’Cuiv for all the excellent work he has put into this project. 
 Action: Noted.  Keep members updated. 
 

5. Plaques/Memorials/Infrastructure Proposals  
 

o Frank Flood Bridge – Update  

 At the previous meeting a date in January was selected for the unveiling of the bridge 
 to coincide with the completion of refurbishment works and new lighting on the 
 bridge.  These works were complete earlier than expected (December 2017).  The 
 original date of 14th March 2018 is now the agreed date for the unveiling which is the 
 anniversary of the executions.  Ardmhéara Mícheál MacDonncha will officiate at the 
 naming of the bridge. The North West Area Office will assist with the event. 
 The Committee agreed amended wording for the plaque on the bridge. 

 Action: Issue invitations and details of unveiling to members and relevant people. 

 

Page 109



o Markey Robinson, Artist – Application 

 At the previous meeting concerns were raised regarding this application.  As many 
 artists exhibited their  works at this gallery, members felt that it could be seen to 
 select one artist over  others and it was referred to the Arts and Cultural Advisory 
 Group (ACAG) for their advice. ACAG have advised that this application did not meet 
 some criteria of the policy document which states “the person/s must have made a 
 unique and outstanding contribution to the life or history of Dublin  through 
 outstanding achievement, distinctive service or significant community contribution”.  
 Action: The Committee agreed not to approve this application. 
 

o Welsh Chapel – Update 
 

Management informed members that since the previous meeting the tenants of this 
building made no attempt to reply to numerous requests to meet with DCC officials to 
discuss refurbishment of the building.  A further visit to this building took place on 
January 31st where again spoke to the tenant who assured us he was still interested 
in re-painting the exterior of the building and would seek quotes for these works.  We 
are awaiting a response from the tenants.  If no reply is received it will be taken that 
all avenues have been exhausted to improve this building by the City Council. 
As the graffiti etc. has been in place for over 7 years we are statute barred from 
Enforcement Action.  This site is not considered endangered and therefore a Section 
59 Endangerments Notice would not be applicable at this point. 
Action: Await reply from tenants. 

 

o Cabra Road Bridge – “The Harry Clarke Bridge” – Application 

 Action: Deferred until the March meeting. 

o Hanna Sheehy Skeffington – Application  

 

Following a discussion regarding the proposed wording on this plaque, members 

approved this application. 

Action: Application approved.  The date of the unveiling of this plaque will be 

Wednesday June 13th 2018. 

6. A.O.B.  

 Next Meeting: Thursday 29th March 2018 at 3.00 p.m. 

_________________ 
Cllr Cieran Perry, 
Chairperson.  

Attendance  

Members Officials Present 
Cllr. Cieran Perry (Chairperson) Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian 
Ardmhéara Mícheál Mac Donncha Ruairi O’Cuiv, Public Art Manager 

Cllr Nial Ring Brian Hanney, Asst. Area Manager 
Cllr Paddy McCartan Paula Ebbs, Senior Staff Officer 
 Tara Doyle, Senior Librarian 

 Gabrielle McClelland, Staff Officer 
Apologies:     Others Present: 

Cllr Mary Freehiil     Cllr Mannix Flynn 

Cllr Frank Kennedy  

Page 110



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO ARTS, CULTURE AND RECREATION SPC 
 

12TH
 MARCH 2018 

 
Item No. 16 

 

 
  Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board Meeting – Breviate of Draft 

Minutes 
Monday 5th February 2018 @ 4.45pm, Room 19, Floor 3, Block 4, Civic Offices, Wood 

Quay, D8 
 

 

ITEM 

 

SUMMARY 

 

ACTION BY 

 

TIMELINE 

 

1. Welcome 
& Apologies 

 RH, who has replaced FC as 
Chairperson of the Board, introduced 
himself and welcomed new members. 
There then followed a ‘round the 
table’ introduction by members who 
outlined their roles in their respective 
organisations. 

  

2. Purpose 
of the 
Partner
ship 
 

 RH gave a brief history of DCSWP, 
discussed funding streams and the 
role of the Board.  
Some points to note:  
 It is important for the Board to set 

strategic parameters for the 
Manager and staff to work from. 

 The Board work with the 
Partnership in an advisory 
capacity. 

 DCC spend large funds on Sports 
at grassroots and participation 
levels as opposed to at high 
performance programmes and 
teams.  

 The Board aim to steer the funds 
to areas that will get more people 
active, get people moving, fitter 
and more aware of the benefits of 
this.  

 The ambition of the Board is to 
identify key areas where DCSWP 
will make a difference and inspire 
people. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 111



 

3. Minutes 
for approval 

 Proposed by SMcN, Seconded by JC; 
Agreed. 

  

 

4. Matters 
Arising 

 No matters arising.  
 

  

 
5. Managers 
Update 

 

 AM presented strategy progress 
report, colour coded to outline the 
status of each strategic initiative 
(STRIDE: 2017 – 2020).  
Points to note: 

 A key focus in 2017 was Goal 2: 
Programmes & Services - core 
programmes were set and 
commenced in June 2017 (full 
year yet to be complete and 
evaluated).  

 Goal 1: Places & Spaces will come 
into force in line with the next City 
Development Plan.  Culture 
Connects are carrying out a 
Cultural Audit of the City to 
include Sport.  Progress has stalled 
due to size of the project. Contact 
was made with all sports clubs in 
the City for inclusion in audit. 
Update for next meeting. 

 Goal 3: Promoting Sport & 
Inspiring People will be a big focus 
in 2018 in form of Dublin Sports 
Fest (to be address in Agenda Item 
7).   

 Goal 4: Good Practice – work 
completed on update of coach 
database and recruitment 
process, H&S statement, setting 
mandatory training for staff.   

 Ongoing work on all strategic 
goals to continue for duration of 
Strategy.  

 A Newsletter was created to provide 
stakeholders with a brief overview of 
the DCSWP. It outlines staff and 
facility resources in the City plus 
provides information on past and 
upcoming activities. 

 Branding and communication 
needs to be improved. It was 
agreed to distribute the 
Newsletter to all stakeholders 
including schools, community 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11th April 
 

Page 112



 

groups, libraries, Sport Ireland and 
the LSP network. It will be 
distributed to all GAA clubs via the 
Dublin County Board. 

 
6. Beat the 
Street 
progress 

 

 This initiative, delivered by UK 
Company Intelligent Health (IH), was 
funded by Dormant Account Funds 
and Healthy Ireland (via Sport Ireland) 
and Dublin City Council. It targeted 
Dublin 8, 10 and 12 – this area was 
chosen as IH stated greatest success is 
achieved in areas of approx 130,000 
population in the smallest 
geographical area possible.  The aim 
was to achieve 10% engagement and 
increase number of people reaching 
recommended levels of physical 
activity per week. 
Points to note: 

 The progress report supplied by IH 
predominately contains statistics 
based solely on adults who 
registered online. There was little 
information included around 
challenges/issues encountered 
and school statistics.  AM has 
requested further information 
including a breakdown of ‘tap’ 
information, drilldown 
information on operational 
budgets and comparisons to other 
cities.  Updated report to be 
presented at next Board meeting. 

 The Board discussed synergies 
between the geographical 
boundaries of DCC and the HSE 
and difficulties defining the 
boundaries.  

 MA asked if the initiative could be 
amended to include a ‘Beat the 
Yard’ programme in schools.  AM 
informed Board that Active School 
flag and Get Ireland Walking will 
soon be rolling out this type of 
initiative.  

  A more co-ordinated approach is 
needed to ensure schools are not 
overwhelmed with programs from 
different sources.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

AM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11th April 
 

Page 113



 

 It was agreed that a phone app 
would help increase participation 
in Beat the Street. 

 The program is now in the 
Sustainability Phase, and Value for 
Money has not been examined 
yet.  

 The program will run until the 1st 
of May 2018.  

 
7. Dublin 
Sports Fest 

 RH updated the Board on progress 
Dublin Sports Fest to be held during 
European Week of Sport: 23rd to 30th 
September, 2018. A working group, 
including members of the Board and 
DCC Officials, have met twice to 
brainstorm ideas.  

 
Points to note: 

 A key focus will be on highlighting 
existing sporting events taking 
place during the week.  
It is envisaged that Dublin Sports 
Fest will be an over-arching theme 
over all sports events that week.  

 Plan to gain awareness in 2018 
and to build year on year 
following. 

 Scheduling of Pop Up activities to 
be explored further e.g. silent 
disco, morning rave. 

 Key focus on targeting people who 
are not currently engaging in 
sport. Pop up activities to reflect 
this.  

 Social media campaign to create 
noise/vision/vibrancy to raise 
awareness of Dublin Sports Fest.  
Need to take lessons from GAGA 
and Culture Night’s success. 

 DCC Events Unit has offered to 
provide support for the initiative. 
Inclusion of Liffey Swim and other 
water-based activities to be 
investigated. 

 Agreed to seek opportunities to 
incorporate ‘wellbeing’ promotion 
into schedule of activities.  

 Links with other NGB’s and the 
Irish Heart Foundation to be 
explored.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dublin Sports Fest  
working group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Immediate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



 

 Working group to present update 
at next Board meeting. 

 

8. A.O.B.  JB discussed funding streams. It is 
DCCs intention to make funding 
available to co-fund an Athletics 
Officer with Athletics Ireland. 
Athletics Ireland to submit a 
proposal around this. 

 DCC have committed funding 
towards a Social Inclusion 
Development Officer to prioritise 
and enhance DCSWP service to 
people with disabilities. Sport 
Ireland have been contacted to 
support this venture.  

 Sport Industry Awards will take 
place in Smock Alley Theatre on 
7th March. Balance Matters 
Project has been submitted by 
DCSWP in LSP category. 

 RH and the DCSWP Board 
expressed their thanks to Declan 
Wallace for his support over the 
last year. They wish him well in 
the next chapter of his life. 

 

AM  11th April 

 Next meeting – Wednesday, 11TH APRIL 
4.45PM, Housing Conference Room, Block 
2, Floor 2, 
                              Civic offices, Wood Quay 

  

 
 
Attendees: Antonia Martin, Jim Beggan, Rob Hartnett, Richard Shakespeare, Sinead McNulty, 
Maurice Ahern, John Costello, John Gillick, Siobhan Fitzpatrick, Mary O’Connor 

Apologies: Mick Dawson, Declan Wallace, Cllr. Seamas McGrattan Richard Fahey, Fiona Coghlan, 
John Foley, Alan Morrin 

Minutes by: Annette Cleary 
 

Page 115




	Agenda
	1 Draft Minutes of meeting held on 22nd January 2018
	2 Presentation on the Draft Creative Ireland Dublin City - Culture and Creativity Strategy 2018 - 2022, Brendan Teeling, Deputy City Librarian
	3 Presentation on UNESCO Dublin Bay Discovery Centre - Donncha O' Dúlaing, Senior Executive Officer
	4 Review of the Passport for Leisure and over 65's Scheme - Jim Beggan, Senior Executive Officer
	5 Update Report on the George Bernard Shaw House -  Brendan Teeling,  Deputy City Librarian
	6 Report on Street and Mural Art for the City - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer
	7 Report on the Implementation of the Cultural Strategy - Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer
	9 Management Update.
	10 Approved Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 23rd November 2017
	11 Approved Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 23rd November 2017.
	12 Approved Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 30th November 2017
	13 Breviate of draft Minutes of the Arts and Cultural Advisory Group meeting held 17th January 2018
	14 Breviate of draft Minutes of the Commemorations Sub-Committee meeting held 31st January 2018.
	15 Breviate of draft Minutes of the Commemorative Naming Committee meeting held 31st January 2018
	16 Breviate of draft Minutes of Dublin City Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Advisory Board meeting held 5th February 2018

